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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors as now constituted is listed below:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man
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Yangchun Dongmen sub-branch, PRC
China Construction Bank Corporation
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

In 2021, the pharmaceutical distribution and healthcare industry
has steadily recovered from the shock of the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, but it still faces an extremely
complicated and unstable market conditions such as the tightened
measures to control the widespread of new coronavirus variant
in many provinces in the PRC and around the world, causing
turbulence in international trade. Facing such severe market
uncertainty, the Group made various decisive adjustments
during the year such as streamlined the business operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market to control
operating costs, implemented an effective cash flow management
strategy, and assessed the business expansion plan with a more
prudent management approach.

Given the inherent unpredictable nature and development of the
COVID-19 pandemic, especially the outbreak of new Omicron
variant that has spread around the world, the Group's business
might be affected and we will closely monitor the overall situation
and development of events in the regard.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business in the PRC.

2021 and 2022 were not like any other years, the pandemic has
made it challenging for everyone but we are proud to see total
revenue of the Group for the year was approximately HK$154.823
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$40.737
million as compared to 2021. The gross profit was approximately
HK$54.234 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$12.898 million as compared to 2021. The loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$50.999 million mainly due to the impairment loss on goodwill
in the amount of approximately HK$46.630 million.

Management’s Statement
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Management’s Statement

& TR

Total revenue contributed by the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approximately HK$103.640 million, representing a significant
increase of 87.36% as compared to 2021. All employees of the
Group spared no effort to actively implement and complete all
development goals under the leadership of the Board and the
management team, we are proud to see a significant growth rate

in this business segment during the year.

Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
approximately HK$51.183 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 12.91% as compared to 2021.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will centralise its resources in developing the
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business. The
Group will look to further develop its hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business through organic growth and

acquisitions.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on developing such
segment through establishment of new self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres and provide hemodialysis consultancy service
to hospitals in the PRC so as to expand its operating scale and

further penetrate in the market.

The Group believes that the demand for hemodialysis treatment
services in the PRC market is still far from being met and has
great potential for development. Based on the Group's experience
and strength in the medical field, we will continue to further
explore and expand our existing businesses to further penetrate
the hemodialysis sector, and it will become the driving force for
building our Group's influence in the market and create better

return to the shareholders.
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Management’s Statement

T

The Group will continue to pay attention to different investment FEBREERAIATAEEERE - AREY
opportunities, identify appropriate businesses and projects for BEEEBERERUKRIEMREREIER -

shareholders, and increase shareholders returns.

APPRECIATION 4 54

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere AR EESeNEHERRS T ALRE
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless EEREEARE I ABEIRRR2 RS o

dedication that helps fuel the Group's healthy development. In HESh s AT E 2R ¥ EBYERETE Y
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business BEETHERRB R_BE-__F - 5H

—_—<——

partners and customers for their continuous support. In 2022, the YaiEaR AR AISEAIE EIREREER -
Company will continue to work tirelessly to create long-term value

returns for the shareholders.

Wang Jia Jun 1T AR
Chief Executive Officer Wang Jia Jun
Hong Kong, 27 June 2022 EB B _F,xB=-++tH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B B

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2022 is as follows:

o Total revenue was approximately HK$154.823 million (2021:
approximately HK$114.086 million), representing an increase
of approximately 35.71% over 2021.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$54.234 million (2021:
approximately HK$41.336 million), representing a increase of
approximately 31.20% over 2021.

o The loss from operations was approximately HK$47.383
million (2021: approximately HK$2.089 million).

o Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$50.999 million (2021: approximately
HK$4.536 million). The loss was mainly due to the
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$46.630
million (2021: Nil).

o The basic and diluted loss per share was approximately
HK$9.10 cents (2021: approximately HK$0.81 cents).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$5.768 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
approximately HK$25.099 million).

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holdings company and the Group
is engaged in the business on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2021 and 2022 were not like any other years, the COVID-19
pandemic has made it challenging for everyone but we are proud
to see total revenue of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$154.823 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$40.737 million as compared to 2021. The gross profit was
approximately HK$54.234 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$12.898 million as compared to 2021. The
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately HK$50.999 million mainly due to the impairment
loss on goodwill in the amount of approximately HK$46.630
million.

Total revenue contributed by the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approximately HK$103.640 million, representing a significant
increase of 87.36% as compared to 2021. All employees of the
Group spared no effort to actively implement and complete all
development goals under the leadership of the Board and the
management team, we are proud to see a significant growth rate
in this business segment during the year.

Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
approximately HK$51.183 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 12.91% as compared to 2021.

In 2022, the on-going COVID-19 crisis in the PRC may continue
to bring uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment. As
far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the recent tightening
measures implemented by the local government in Guangdong
and Fujian Provinces, the PRC have caused an increase in medical
material costs, transportation and related costs.

Segment information

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business and (2) hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business in the PRC. Financial information in respect of these
operations is presented in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
The Group has a large and broad customer base through
our distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The
Group distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers
located principally in the Fujian Province. Our customers
can be categorized into three types namely hospitals and
healthcare institutions and end customers such as companies
operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores, independent
pharmacies, and outpatient departments of community
hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.

In the early part of 2019, the medical reform policy further
controlled the pharmaceutical costs in public hospitals
in Fujian Province which reduced the overall size of the
pharmaceutical distribution business in public hospitals. In
addition, the distribution policy broke the original rules that
essential medicines in public hospitals in Fujian Province were
only distributed by 10 wholesale companies, thereby causing
material adverse impact in the operation and its overall
performance of the Group in pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business. As a result, revenue from this segment
was approximately HK$51.183 million (2021: approximately
HK$58.771 million), representing an approximately
12.91% decrease. Gain from this business segment was
approximately HK$0.007 million (2021: Gain approximately
HK$0.156 million).

Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business

In respect of the hemodialysis treatment business, the Group
currently operates several jointly-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres under co-operations contracts and self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centres spread across the
Guangdong and Fujian Provinces, PRC. In addition, the
Group signed a 10 years service contract with Zhuhai Jiulong
Hospital Company Limited® (kBN REEPRARAF)Iin
March 2020 for providing hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business to the hospital. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the revenue from this segment was
approximately HK$103.640 million (2021: approximately
HK$55.315 million), representing an significant increase of
approximately 87.36%. Loss from this business segment was
approximately HK$38.014 million (2021: Gain approximately
HK$7.947 million).

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s revenue from
the operating segment had increased considerably. For the year
ended 31 March 2022, revenue was approximately HK$154.823
million (2021: approximately HK$114.086 million), accounting
for an increase of approximately 35.71% as compared to 2021.
The increase of revenue was generated from the hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy services in the PRC.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sunday income and bank
interest income amounted to approximately HK$0.05 million
(2021: approximately HK$0.597 million) for the year ended
31 March 2022.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2022, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$29.600 million (2021:
approximately HK$24.987 million), representing an increase of
approximately 18.46% as compared to 2021.
the selling and distribution expenses was due to the increase of

The increase in

employee benefits, medical material costs, transportation and
related costs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2022
amounted to approximately HK$22.250 million (2021:
approximately HK$16.524 million). The increase has arisen from
the first full year of operation of a hemodialysis treatment centre
in the Guangdong Province, the PRC.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the finance costs of the
Group were approximately HK$1.308 million (2021: approximately
HK$1.338 million), representing a slight decrease of approximately
2.24% as compared to 2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Impairment losses recognised in goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
In 2022,

assessment of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-

the management has performed an impairment

of use assets of the Group. There was impairment loss on goodwill
approximately HK$46.630 million. The recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is determined based on a discounted pre-tax
cash flow projections, prepared in accordance with the financial

budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.

Financial information in respect of the goodwill calculation is

presented in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group had recorded loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$50.999 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$4.536 million).

The significant increase in loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$46.630 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

The loss increase was mainly attributable to, among others, the

following reasons:

(@) increase in cost of sales and services and selling and
distribution expenses due to the COVID-19 pandemic in
the affected areas in the PRC where, the local government
imposed various measures, including restrictions on business
activities to prevent new COVID-19 variant outbreak in
the early 2022 and adversely affected the Group's overall
profitability in pharmaceutical distribution and hemodialysis

services; and
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the provision of impairment loss on goodwill (the
“Impairment”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
Impairment was primarily attributable to (i) temporary halt
of business cooperation with a jointly-operated hemodialysis
treatment centre located in Fujian Province, the PRC in
early 2022; and (ii) delay in the business plan in respect of
the opening of two self-operated hemodialysis treatment
centres in 2022 in the Guangdong Province, the PRC, of
which the delay in enrolment of medical insurance list and
the opposition of the local villagers for the opening of the
hemodialysis treatment centre close to their vicinity. The
Group is currently in negotiation with the villagers to resolve
the matter. The Impairment is a non-cash item and has no
effect on the Group's daily operations and cash flow.

The Impairment is caused by the combination of several
namely the delay in business plan in respect of
the opening of two self-operated hemodialysis treatment
centres in Huidong, Guangdong (“Huidong Centre”)
and in Maoming, Guangdong (“Maoming Centre”) and
the temporary halt of business cooperation with a jointly-
operated hemodialysis treatment centre located in Xianyou,
Fujian Province (“Xianyou Centre”).

events,

Huidong Centre started trial run in the last quarter of
2019. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the government of
the PRC implemented stringent precautionary measures
which increased the operating cost of Huidong Centre.
Further, Huidong Centre encountered delay in obtaining the
specialised licence under National Medical Insurance Drug
List for its official normal operation of the hemodialysis
treatment service. According to the original trial run plan,
the trial run operation of Huidong Centre was finished in the
first quarter of 2021 and would commence formal operation
after obtaining the specialised licence. However, after the
completion of trial run and up to the date hereof, Huidong
Centre is still pending obtaining of the specialised licence.
To the best knowledge of the Directors, the application for
the specialised licence under normal and usual circumstances
will take about two and a half years to three years. In light
of the effect of COVID-19 pandemic, it is expected that the
application procedures will take a longer time. The Directors
expected that Huidong Centre will be enrolled into the
specialised licence in the second or third quarter 2023.
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Due to the fact that the joint venture partner of Xianyou
Centre failed to pay in full the accumulated profit
attributable to the Group since April 2018, the Group
decided to pursue legal proceedings against Xianyou Boai
Hospital* (flEtE 2 EB3), the joint venture partner in
January 2022. Due to the dispute with the joint venture
partner, the operation between the Group and Xianyou
Centre was halted temporarily and in first quarter of
2022, the Company first became aware of the Impairment
indicators which may lead to possible Impairment. It is
expected that after the dispute has been resolved, the
Group and Xianyou Boai Hospital will further negotiate for
resumption of the joint-operation under the cooperation
agreement. The Group was advised by its legal adviser in the
PRC that the legal proceedings will probably be concluded by
the end of this year.

The Board further submitted that the business plan for
the opening of Maoming Centre was delayed due to the
strong objection of the neighbourhood villagers as they
are concern that the sewage disposed by Maoming Centre
might cause pollution to the area where Maoming Centre
located at. Despite the Group will have proper and stringent
treatment to the sewage before the disposal and the Group's
repeated lobbying for the opening of Maoming Centre,
the neighbourhood villagers still vigorously objected to the
opening of Maoming Centre in the vicinity where they lived.
In April 2022, certain neighbourhood villagers officially
issue a notice to instigate all other villagers to raise their
collectively objection. As a result, the Board considered the
business plan of Maoming Centre would be substantially
delayed. Nonetheless, the Board still uses its best endeavours
to negotiate and persuade the neighbourhood villagers to
accept the opening of Maoming Centre. As the Group is still
in the course of negotiation with the villagers, it is expected
that Maoming Centre will only be open in two to three years

after the villagers have withdrawn their objections.

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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Due to the PRC government’s stringent precautionary
measures, including additional testing requirement for the
Group’s patients and lockdown policy in order to combat
COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter of 2022, the
operating costs of the Group is expected to be increased and
the lockdown policy is expected to affect the prospect of
the Group’s hemodialysis treatment business resulting in the
negative impact on the profit thereof. Hence, the forecast
for the valuation of the Group’s hemodialysis treatment

business is adversely affected leading to the Impairment.

Given the events mentioned above happened closely in the
financial year of 2022, the overall impacts when combined

may be significant and leading to the Impairment.

The Board considered one single event might not have
material impact leading to the Impairment on the goodwill.
However, given that several events occurred contemporarily
in the financial year of 2022, the combined impact and
magnitude caused the Company to consider the Impairment
which a prudent director shall have do so. Though the delay
in business plan for Huidong Centre and Maoming Centre
is temporary, such delay will affect the cashflow forecast.
As the business valuation of the hemodialysis treatment
business of the Group adopts the income approach which
estimates the future economic benefits and discounts
these benefits to their present value, the delay in business
plan could not support the original forecast. Hence, the
Impairment is appropriate in order to reflect the current

value in use of the hemodialysis treatment of the Group.
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As to the current Impairment, the Board would like to
submit that since the acquisition of the hemodialysis
treatment business in the financial year of 2017, the
Company had a plan to open self-operated and/or jointly-
operated hemodialysis treatment centres. Pursuant to the
business plan formulated by the Board in the financial
year of 2021, the Group planned to have six (6) self-
operated and/or jointly-operated hemodialysis treatment
centres in the financial year of 2022. As at the date of this
submission, the Group has opened three (3) self-operated
hemodialysis treatment centres and the Group has also
provided hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service to
a hospital in Zhuhai, PRC since March 2020. The openings
of Huidong Centre and Maoming Centre were delayed due
to the reasons as stated above. The dispute with the joint-
venture partner of Xianyou Centre is unpredictable when the
Board formulate the business plan in the financial year of
2021. Further, the continuing outbreak of COVID-19 in the
PRC increase the operation costs of the Group’s hemodialysis
treatment business since the Group is required by law to
impose strict testing procedures before the Group renders
the hemodialysis treatment to the patients. All this affect the
cashflow as originally set out in the business plan.

The Board would like to reiterate that the Group's business
plan for its hemodialysis treatment business has not been
changed but there is delay in time for the opening new self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centres. Should there is
prolonged delay in Huidong Centre and Maoming Centre
due to unforeseeable circumstances, the Company will in
parallel find other suitable location and premises to open
other new hemodialysis treatment centres as replacement
of Huidong Centre and Maoming Centre. As to the change
in surrounding circumstances, the repeated outbreak of
COVID-19 in the PRC is uncontrollable and unforeseeable.
The Board will periodically review the policy and procedures
of the Group’s hemodialysis treatment centres in order
to minimize the impact caused by the COVID-19 and the

relevant measures requirement.

Financial information in respect of the goodwill calculation
is presented in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Overall financial position

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$5.768 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately
HK$25.099 million). The decrease was due to the repayment of
shareholder and director loans. The Group recorded total current
assets of approximately HK$81.453 million as at 31 March 2022
(2021: approximately HK$66.512 million) and total current
liabilities of approximately HK$45.468 million as at 31 March
2022 (2021: approximately HK$32.916 million). The current ratio
of the Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the
current liabilities, was approximately 1.79 as at 31 March 2022
(2021: approximately 2.02).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio which was
calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising amount due
to a connected person, amount due to a director, amount due to
a shareholder and lease liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents
over total equity (including all capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company) was approximately 0.15 (2021:
approximately 0.07).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, no member of the Group was engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the
Group.

Capital commitment
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2021: approximately HK$1.245 million).

Going concern

Based on the current financial forecast and financing facilities
available, the Group has sufficient financial resources for ongoing
operation in the foreseeable future. As such, the financial
statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2022, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$28.011 million (2021:
approximately HK$28.011 million) representing 560,222,136
ordinary shares (2021: 560,222,136 ordinary shares).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

Market risks

PRC government policy

The Group is very concerned about external regulatory
compliance and environmental changes, and a management
team is responsible for timely collection, interpretation and
promotion of external regulatory requirements. The Group's
management, together with the business line, will also discuss
changes in the external environment, assess the impact of
regulatory requirements on the existing business, and develop
targeted countermeasures. The Group’s compliance team will
provide professional advice on the latest regulatory requirements
and conduct compliance reviews on the compliance of existing
regulations.

Operational risks

Risks of the COVID-19 pandemic. Due to factors such as the
regulatory lock-down, quarantine of people, and delayed
resumption of work and production as a result of the pandemic,
the operations of the Group may have been affected to some
extent. The Group will pay close attention and development of
the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

Foreign exchange and goodwill impairment risks

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Directors consider that the
Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be manageable.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the
year.

18 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

FERERERAFHAMER
AEBOMBRR  BELE EBRART
REZEABRRTABEARYE - UTAE
SEEHINTIEARRTBAERR KT
XFFESN REFEAEELREERE
AP EREABEGATEBBEANEMA
S RAHRER

15 R

PEB AR
FEBIFERINBEESHMRREE
EREEBREERBWE BENESINNE
EER - AEBMEEEEREFHBPITR R
AOMMIRBEE AHEEERHRAES
RE LHEHHEREER ~EBGR
EREHENMEEERRUEXERMEE
EHBERZEZRNETERARGRIETE -

SiERME

COVID- 19 BRI REIE - BB BRI BE B £ 8H -
AEBEURETEENLEE  AEENE
EUEERI—TETRENRE -FEERKE
PIRAAECOVID- 19 E B BT H B A E
B BRI EEEENTEo

5 BE R 7 2 iR {E /AL B
HRAEEEARORZHEIUARERET
SE MASDRTERBUARBERET
FE HELESERBIERRE REEIRE
EEZEBKRSEARATE-EIL > FR> &
% 3 % B8 it A AT IE TU Y P S B B B SR L
B R -



Impairment test for goodwill is based on the forecast of future
cash flow and contains the management’s relevant assumptions
and professional judgements. Goodwill is exposed to certain risks

of impairment.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 184 (2021: 178) full time

employees (including Directors) as shown in the following table:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the year ended 31 March 2022, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$19.247 million
(2021: approximately HK$20.409 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include share-
based payment, the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong;
and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any charges on the

Group's assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during

the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B AL KB WmS

ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2013 and
it is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy business in the PRC.
We uphold the operation philosophy of “Honesty and Morality Go
First” and adhere to the operation objective of “Benefiting Both

the Society and People”.

N

Benefiting both the society
and people

BEFdg
grhBaY

In terms of pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business,
we have a large and board customer base under our distribution
network in the PRC. The Group sells pharmaceutical products
to customers primarily located in Fujian Province. Our customers
can be divided into three categories, which are hospitals and
healthcare institutions and end customers, such as companies
operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores, independent
pharmacies, and outpatient departments of community hospitals,
healthcare service stations and clinics. In terms of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy business, the Group is one of the
market leaders in providing hemodialysis services. We committed
to transforming care delivery to improve the quality of life of our
patients and strives to become the largest provider of kidney care

services in the PRC.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

While the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"”) pandemic is
gradually improving, its economic impact on the world remains
uncertain. We firmly believe that the economy will resume to
normal, and the Group's financial performance will recover
gradually after the pandemic. Good environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") policies becomes evermore important
under the influence of COVID-19. A company needs to have a
comprehensive sustainable development strategy to survive from
the influence of force majeure. During the Reporting Period,
the Group continued to work with sustainability consultants
to identify environmental, social and governance risks in order
to refine our sustainability governance policies and reporting
disclosures. We identify important sustainability issues based
on industry trends and business developments, which focus
on climate change, product and service safety, anti-corruption
training. The Board of Directors will discuss solutions for related
risks in order to develop a more comprehensive sustainable

development strategy.

Despite the economic downturn, the Group holds an optimistic
and positive attitude about the prospects of healthcare industry in
the PRC. The Group will centralize its resources on hemodialysis
treatment and consulting services. In the future, the Group will
focus on the establishing of new self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres and providing hemodialysis consulting services
to hospitals simultaneously. The Group will continue to study the
market potential of other cities and regions in the PRC, and strive

to expand business scale.

Finally, the Board would like to take this opportunity to thank
all shareholders, business partners and customers for their
continuous trust and support to the Group, as well as every
employee’s contribution. The Group will continue to focus on
business development, strive to create opportunities and look

forward to sharing the harvest with all stakeholders.

Board of Directors of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE g RERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report is our seventh Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, which aims to present the Group's policies, measures and
performance in terms of environmental, social and governance,
for our stakeholders to better understand the progress of our
corporate social responsibility and sustainability issues in the

Reporting Period.

Reporting Period and Scope

The Reporting Period for this Report is from 1 April 2021 to 31
March 2022. The scope of the Report is the same as last year's
report, covering the Group's pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and hemodialysis treatment and consulting service
businesses. The disclosure of environmental key performance
indicators ("KPIs"”) focuses on the Group's pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and hemodialysis treatment and
consulting service businesses in the PRC, while the disclosure of

social KPIs covers the entire Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Reporting Principles wREEA

This Report discloses environmental and social KPIs in accordance ~ ZNIREKREHZFA(GESH EHRA) TEHR
with the “Comply or explain” provisions in Appendix 27 Al)) i -+ t(EE - HEREAHRSIES)
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the (M¥E51)) P TRETFFAERE R E R EE
“Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the MAIREARMEREERNIER AEBRENU
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. TZIEEREREA  EEM -2 EtA—HM4 F
The Group adheres to the following three reporting principles AEERENER HFRFESRTR

in the preparation of the Report: materiality, quantification, and

consistency. Please refer to the table below for details:

Principle

IR

Responses from the Group

F @y E fE

Materiality

BEM

Quantitative

Consistency

—R 4

In order to assess the materiality of the issues in a more comprehensive manner, we conducted
an internal materiality assessment and obtained the opinions of our stakeholders through
different communication channels to effectively identify the issues that are material to the Group
and stakeholders during the Reporting Period.

ATREEREMGRE HERERZE HMANAFEETTAREEZE TG LEBFR
RETHREOHENER MBS B AEREBRENEALEENZEE-

The Group’s environmental and social KPIs are disclosed quantitatively, where applicable. The
KPIs are calculated with reference to “How to prepare an ESG Report”— “Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and “Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs".
FRITHBERT  AEEUECAACRIREREEHE AAERS2E(NARERE LT
RERBES)PIMER  RIFAREIERERIESIARTHER=  H SRR ERISRERIES!
EiTstEe

The Group uses consistent statistical methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time. If the methods used and the scope of reporting change, we will explain in the
footnotes for stakeholders’ reference.

FEBERAR—NRA A A BERARENER BREARAIFAERRNLER -HEMBNS
EMEREERE R EMEFER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE g RERRE

Data Collection

The information and data cited by the Group are derived from
official documents of the Group, and have been reviewed and
approved by the Group's Board of Directors. The Report was
approved by the Board of the Group in July 2022.

Report Version and Access

This Report is an annual publication, which is available in both
traditional Chinese and English. The electronic version of the
Report can be downloaded from the website of the Stock
Exchange (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group (https://
www.wanjia-gp.com). In the event of any conflict or inconsistency
between the English and Chinese versions, the English version

shall prevail.

Feedback

The Group values the opinion of various stakeholders and
hopes to continuously improve our performance in sustainable
development. If you have any suggestions on this Report or the

sustainable development strategy of the Group, please feel free to

contact us.

Address: Suite 1801, 18/F, The Gateway, Harbour City,
25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: info@wanijia-gp.com

Company website: www.wanjia-gp.com
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SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

A good governance structure can lay the foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group. The Board strictly
oversees the Group's environmental, social and governance risk
management, including assessing, prioritizing, and managing
the material ESG issues and risks, and has ultimate responsibility
for the Group's substantial risks. Meanwhile, the Board will set
and manage the ESG-related targets and review the progress and
completion of them. The Board also regularly reviews the relevant
ESG policies and measures, and effectiveness of sustainable
development. In addition, the Company has engaged Riskory
Consultancy Limited as sustainability consultant to provide ESG

and sustainability advisory services.

Effective risk management is also an important part of corporate
governance. The Board regularly reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. Employment contracts and Employee Handbook
also provide clear definitions of employee codes of conduct and
formulate corresponding measures for violations or unethical
behaviours. For details on corporate governance, please refer to

the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-FRAUD

Integrity helps the Group to build its reputation and enhance its
competitiveness in the industry, so we have always maintained
the highest standards of corporate governance. The Group
takes zero-tolerance to any bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering activities. We have established a clear governance
structure to regularly review and monitor policies and practices
of corporate management. We strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations, optimize our management system, safeguard
the interests of our stakeholders, and enhance corporate value
and accountability. The Group strictly abides by all relevant laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal Law
of the People's Republic of China, Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery, Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of

Hong Kong).

A strict anti-corruption policy is employed within the Group,
such as the “Employee Code of Conduct & Professional Code”.
Our staff are instructed not to accept any benefits from suppliers
or other partner companies in any circumstance. Employees are
required to declare their relations with any other personnel of the
Group and other partner companies prior to their employment
and shall abstain from such business activities that may cause
conflict of interests. The Group has established a whistleblowing
policy to strengthen corporate governance and internal control.
Employees may report suspected violations and unethical conduct
to their supervisors, designated responsible personnel or senior
management. Upon receipt of the report, designated responsible
personnel will investigate and provide solutions to all complaints
and allegations contained in the report and report the results of
the investigation to the Review Committee. If the management
identifies a serious breach, consideration will be given to referral
to the judicial authorities to ensure that the Group operates with
the highest ethical and professional integrity. During the Reporting
Period, we provided anti-corruption training to directors and
staff through online to enhance their integrity awareness and
understanding of relevant legislation, and to stop corruption from

our internal business operations.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any legal
cases regarding corrupt practices. The Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a

significant impact on the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder opinions provide a solid foundation for the Group’s
long-term development and success. We value the stakeholders’
opinions, and we have been trying to increase and discover means
of communications proactively, to ensure we are well-aware
of to their opinion and expectations. We communicated with

stakeholders through various channels, as summarized below:
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Stakeholders Major Communication Channels Concerns
RnE FERBERE [7pE =8

¢ Annual general meetings e Corporate governance
8%%% - REBEAE RPN
Investor and e Annual and interim reports e Business compliance
Shareholder s FERFTHERE o XBAER

REERRR

e Press release and announcements

s MERRAS

e Company website
o NEHBLE

e Return on investment

o REME®

o After-sales services

é% . EBRE

Customer

-4 =} emails
s ERRBRN ABRER

e Company website
o AT#YuL

e Customer feedback forms, hotline and

e Quality and safety of products and services

s EmEABBNEEREZR

e Customer rights protection

s TRETRE
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Stakeholders Major Communication Channels Concerns
HinE FEBERE RAEEIR

e Site visits e Fair procurement process
gigv . BiES . ATRWER

Supplier and Business

e Business conferences

Timely delivery of supplied goods/services

SN — . ¥HEE o RESR{HEMREMNE SR, R
HEmREBB
e Supplier assessments
o HEEMEZ
o e Trainings e Staff salary and benefits
@Th o 13 o BT #ENREF
L.
Employee e Performance review and meetings e Health and safety of working environment
. . REREREN . TRBENRERZS

Internal announcements and publications

AEIVN=P S

Suggestion box
BRME

Training and career development

HEEl R B 2R B R

il

Government and
Regulatory Authority
BT REEHE

Routine reports

PIITHRE

Working conferences

Temis

Supervision on compliance with
local laws and regulations

BERABTAMERRERNEE

Compliance with laws and regulations

BT ERRER

Sustainable development

AREERE

*3

Community

HE

Community activities

HEES

Charitable donations
ZER™

Social media

R
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group engaged an independent sustainable development
consultant to assist on our materiality assessment of ESG related
issues. We conduct internal assessments on the impact of various
issues on stakeholders to identify and assess the expectations and
concerns of various stakeholders in the Group. The procedures for

the materiality assessment are as follow:

Review and
Examination

(o] /B e 4R

Issue Identification

ik Bl 5% =E

By referring to the new requirements of the Stock Exchange and
the Guide, and communicating with stakeholders, the material

ESG issues of the Group were sorted out.

Combining the expectations of major stakeholders and the
influence of different sustainable development issues, we reviewed

and re-assessed the material issues identified in 2020/21.

Based on a review of the various ESG issues, we agreed that
material topics in this Year have not changed significantly
compared to those in 2020/21. During the Reporting Period, 8
issues being classified as significant topics. The significant topics

will be disclosed in this Report.

As the international community attaches greater importance to
climate change, we have added a new ESG topic “Combating
Climate Change” to address the Group’s climate change strategy
during the Reporting Period. In order to better complement the
trend of regulations development of the Stock Exchange, we have
also added the topic of “Anti-corruption”. During the Reporting
Period, 8 issues have higher materiality and highlighted in this
report, including Wastewater Management, Combatting Climate
Change, Anti-Corruption, Customer Satisfaction, Data Security
and Customer Privacy Management, Product Health and Safety,

Product Quality Management, Employee Communication.
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Environment Aspect

RIEEE

Operational Practices Aspect

EEESER

Social Aspect
HtEREE

1. Air Emission Management
1. REHIMER

2. Energy Management
2. ERERE

3. Environmental Compliance
3. IRIEEHR

4. Expenses on Environmental
Protection

4. RIBFRERX
5. Greenhouse Gases Management

5. AEREREIRE

6. Waste Management
6. EEYEIRE

7. Wastewater Management

7. BEKER

8. Combating climate change

8. EHREEI

Note 1:The highlighted issues are identified as having higher materiality

during the Reporting Period.
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9. Anti-Competitive Behavior
Management
9. REBITAEE

10. Anti-Corruption
10.R&5

11.Company Profitability

M. AEBFEE

12.Customer Satisfaction

N.ZERREE

13.Data Security and Customer

Privacy Management

B.EBEZERERLEER

14.Innovation and Intellectual
Property Rights
14. BIRT e F o8 EE

15.Product Health and Safety
15.EmBRERER

16.Product Quality Management
16.EmHEEER

17.Supplier Management
17 HEmEE

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. Anti-discrimination

18. R I %8

19. Community Relations

19. & RA&

20.Diversity and Equal Opportunity
20 ZERFEHE

21.Employee Communication

21.E58E&E

22.0ccupational Safety and Health
22 MEZERER

23.Social and Economic Compliance
23 HEREBEER

24.Talent Management

24 NAEE

25.Training and Development

25 1Al R B

26.Prevention of Child and Forced

Labour

26. 0L E T Kiaks e

FEERAERSEENNRENERTE
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group operates pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business, so drug safety and effectiveness are of particular
importance. As a responsible drug distributor, the Group adopts
effective quality control measures during procurement, storage,
sales, and transportation to ensure the quality of medicine. The
Group is committed to providing professional services at our
customers’ convenience. The Group's pharmaceutical wholesales
and distribution business is in strict compliance with laws and
regulations stipulated by the State Food and Drug Administration,

including but not limited to:

Medicinal Product Administration Law of the People’s

Republic of China;

o Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China;

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of

Consumer Rights and Interests;

o Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China;

o Regulation on the Administration of Medical Institutions;

. Measures for the Administration of Medical Quality;

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

o Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
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To facilitate employees’ effective execution of their responsibilities
in accordance with relevant requirements set out in laws and
regulations, the Group has established an effective quality
management system, which plays a key role in protecting our
customers’ personal information from unauthorized access, as well

as ensuring the quality of our after-sale services.

The nature of the Group's business does not involve intellectual
property rights. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety, advertising and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

that have a significant impact on the Group.

Supplier Management

The Group regards suppliers as partners, and establishes mutual
trust and win-win cooperation with suppliers. We adhere the
mission of providing pharmaceutical products to the community
and distribute medicine for healthcare institutions. As a company
mainly engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale business, the Group
has higher requirements on the stability of the supply chain.
Patients need to take a specified number of drugs according to
the treatment, and the stability of the supply chain will directly
affect the quality of the patient’s treatment. In order to ensure
the stability of supply chain, the Group has established a long-
term relationship with a variety of large and medium-sized
pharmaceutical suppliers from various provinces across the nation
as means to diversify our supply chain and maintain stability of
supply. During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged a total of
58 medicines and consumables suppliers which all located in the
PRC.
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Prior to inclusion as a supplier for the Group, a strict and thorough
investigation of the potential supplier is performed to evaluate
their suitability. Approved suppliers are reassessed annually to
ensure compliance with Group's requirements. In addition to price
and quality of goods, the Group also has specific requirements
regarding the environmental policies of its suppliers. We require
the suppliers to comply with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations of the country in which they are located, and the
Quality Management Department will conduct supervision and
verification. All suppliers were assessed in accordance with the

same set of procedures.

The Group maintains contact with its suppliers through various
channels to learn about their needs and to identify opportunities
for collaboration with each other. For example, the Group holds
a supplier appreciation meeting every year to provide a platform
for exchange of opinion and potential business plans. At the same
time, we will continue to monitor the quality of our suppliers’
medicines to ensure the quality and safety of medicines through
the implementation of a quality control system. To further ensure
the quality and safety of the products we sell, suppliers have
provided quality assurance agreements to products. Whenever
a supplier deliveries their products, the Quality Management
Department must carry out acceptance for each shipment to
avoid sending non-conforming drugs to customers. We also
regularly follow up with suppliers on product quality feedback and
opinions, continuously improve and jointly formulate solutions to

achieve a win-win situation.
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Product and Service Quality

In order to formulate and implement quality objectives and
monitor each department’'s codes, the Group has a Quality
Management Department to maintain stable quality throughout
the supply chain. The Quality Management Department manages

product quality according to the following procedures:

EmRBHEE

AEUERRTREER URERZEEFI
WITATA AEEREEEEER LUER
EEHEERENEIE-EEEENTRE
UTREFEEEREE .

Visit each department regularly to carry out internal review, risk assessment, and

analysis of the results

EHZFH AR EPIETABEL  RERTEREEDHT

Propose suggestions for improvement and enhancement

RENEREBERS

Results generated from the assessment are submitted to the management for
review and follow-up

SEAERT FEEEERE RN RBE

Storage conditions of medications are crucial for maintaining
the quality and efficacy of medicines. The Group's storage and
transportation facilities are all designed in compliance with
national regulations, with systems to closely monitor temperature
and humidity to ensure that medicines are not affected by
changes in the surrounding environment. The Group has also
developed a medicines recycling management system to facilitate
systematic recycling when necessary. In case any recalls, the Food
and Drug Administration must be notified by the management.
During the Reporting Period, no sold or shipped products of the

Group were recalled for safety and health reasons.
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We understand the concerns and needs of patients, and we care
for them from both service and emotional aspects. The Group
will regularly check and evaluate patients’ health indicators and
propose treatment plans. The Group not only cares about the
patients’ health condition, but also the patients’ emotions. For
example, the Group will provide transportation for patients who
live in remote areas for treatment, and even offer help and gifts to

patients with difficulty to express our care.

Nursing staff took care
of patients who have
difficulty in mobility.

HEASRORETH
TEHEA

Customer Privacy Protection

During operations, the Group’s employees are often required to
access customers’ and patients’ information. However, employees
are not allowed to disclose customers’ and patients’ information
to anyone under any circumstance. Access rights of computer
system have been set to prevent unauthorized personnel from
accessing restricted information. The Group’s computer system is
updated on a regularly basis to prevent information leakage due

to cyber-attacks.
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After-sales Service and Complaint Management

The Group highly values customer feedback and prioritizes their
interests. We are committed to continuously improving the quality
of our services and established a system to manage complaints.
Customer service representatives from the Group contact
customers on a regular basis to learn about their satisfaction
with the products and services. In addition, we have a collection
box to collect customers’ opinion in order to more effectively to
understand customers’ expectations. All customer feedback and
complaints are handled by the customer service department, and
records in detail for future reference. For complaints involving
major incidents, an investigation team will be set up by the Group

to follow up and review potential issues.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no complaints

related to products and services.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group values every employee and believes that employees
are the most valuable and important assets. Therefore, we strived
to create a suitable and ideal working environment for our
employees. The Group is committed to protecting the rights and
interests of employees and complying with employment-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People's
Republic of China and Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare that have a significant impact on

the Group.
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Employee Profile BTHE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed a total of 184 2022438310 > &N&EE—H£ A 1841
(2020/21: 178) employees, which are all full-time employees. The (202021 FE 1178 i) BT 2 AE2HET -
distribution of employees by gender, age group and geographical LU THIRFMTIBIEER  FH AR Rt E

region is as follows: EoNETI S -
Employee By Gender in 2021/22 Employee By Gender in 2020/21
2021/228% 4RI B 5 B THRE 2020/ FEHRMRHB D ETRE

Below 30
30 F

30-40
30-40%%

41-50
41-50%%

51-60
51-603%

Above 60
605% M £

119
129

Jl Vvale J Female
B Z

Employee By Age Group in 2021/22 and 2020/21
2021/22722020/21EEHEREI S ETHY

M 2021722
4l 202021
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80
Employee By Geographical Employee By Geographical
Region in 2021/22 Region in 2020/21
2021/228MER 3 B THRE 2020/ 11 FEEHMER S ETHRH
5 12

179
166
Al the PRC Ml Hong Kong
R ET P it &5
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During the Reporting Period, the total turnover rate is 20%
(2020/21: 5%), which the distribution of employee turnover rate

by gender, age group and geographical region is as follows:

RBREHME BEERALEERAE20%
(2020215 1 5%) U T AZ MR~ F£&
A RMEEDEERKLEER

Employee Turnover Rate Unit 2021/22
BEMKLbE Efi 2021/224F"
By gender
R E 5
Male percentage 19
BH B
Female percentage 21
gog i Bt
By age group
BRERANES
Below 30 percentage 27
305 AT Bt
30-40 percentage 21
30-408% BOLE
41-50 percentage 12
41-507% Bt
51-60 percentage 0
51-605% Bt
Above 60 percentage 0
605% U £ Bt
By geographical region
Bt E R 5
the PRC percentage 20
Fh [ Ay it B
Hong Kong percentage 40
EE B
Total turnover rate percentage 20
BEERELLE Bt

Note 1: In accordance with Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs of “How to prepare an ESG Report”, we
enhance the comprehensiveness of reporting disclosure on

employee turnover rate during the Reporting Period.
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Employment Policy

Regardless of gender, race, physical disability, marital status,
religion, political preference, or sexual orientation, we ensure
that all employees receive fair treatment and equal opportunities.
Recruitment and promotion of our staff are only based on work
performance and capabilities. The Group’s Human Resources
Department arranges annual performance evaluation for our
staff to provide them with performance feedback, as well as to
allow employees to understand their own ability and room for
improvement. The performance evaluation also provides valuable
information to management, helping the Group identify talents
for taking leading roles for the Group's future development.
The remuneration of the Group's employees is determined in
accordance with the duties and responsibilities of the relevant
staff and the market trend. There was no complaint received in

relation to any unfair treatment during the Reporting Year.

The Group signed employment contracts with the employees
employed. The contract lists out the terms of employment, as well
as the rights and benefits of both parties, including remuneration,
probationary period, and termination of employment contract
arrangements, to protect the rights and interests of employees.
The Employee Handbook sets out the employee’s working day
and overtime work arrangements. Employees can enjoy paid
annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and

breastfeeding leave according to their positions.

The Group’s employees in the PRC participated in defined
contribution schemes associated with relevant provincial and
municipal governments, under which the Group and the
employees in the PRC are required to make monthly contributions
to these schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension
in accordance with the requirements of the relevant local and
municipal governments. The Group has arranged the Hong
Kong employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee whereby each of the Group (the employer) and the Hong
Kong employees make monthly contributions to the scheme in

accordance with relevant legislations.

BB AL R ERWmS
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In addition, we also organize different kinds of staff activities B9 BMPTAEAEHERAREENET
from time to time, so that our staff can have more opportunities EEAFEETHESHOHE  IHERKE
to socialize and strengthen their relationship, as well as to relieve FIRFIREF 4R TEE 7 o GIANTE i T B & 217
their stress. For example, we held a rice dumpling-wrapping BRFES PG ERNAEEES - AET
activity during the Dragon Boat Festival, outreach activity during BREH KFAEATHSHBRENELINS
the Mid-Autumn Festival and celebrated the birthdays of our staff. N ERBMERETHE2REFAER
In order to thank the doctors and nurses for their efforts, we gave UEBNRENESESNEE!

our best wishes and high respect to all medical staff on Doctor’s

Day and Nurse's Day!

We sent gifts to thank the nurses and
doctors for their efforts

HFPE LU RS E T RBEFIREN-.

We celebrated the Nurse's Day.
BB MELTEHERES -
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Labour Standards

We adopt zero tolerance towards child and forced labour. The
group strictly complies with the Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour and Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Minors to eliminate any possibility of underaged
employees and forced labour by implementing prevention
measures. Identity cards are verified during recruitment to ensure
applicants meet the legal age requirement for work. In addition,
confirmation of employment requires approval and review by
multiple departments to ensure compliance and minimize the
possibility of hiring child labour. In case of child labour or forced
labour, we will immediately ask the personnel to stop work and
investigate the recruitment process of the Human Resources

Department to avoid the same situation in the future.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
The Group aspires to enable employees to be physically healthy,

and we attach great importance to both psychological and
physical health. At the same time, we strive to provide employees
with a safe working environment. Employees are required to
comply with safety guidelines and focus on personal hygiene. We
formulated safety and health policies in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of

Occupational Diseases.

The Group’s work-related injury rate and work-related mortality
rate remained at zero. The number of working days due to work-
related injuries is zero during the Reporting Period. The Group
did not have any work-related fatalities in the past three years
(including the Reporting Period). During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to provide a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards that have a

significant impact on the Group.

BB AL R ERWmS
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We continue to implement measures to ensure the health and EMEFEET—RIEHK KEFREINRE
safety of our employees: BEHZE

Physical examinations are arranged annually by the Group. In case any abnormal
health conditions are identified, follow-up actions will be taken and internal
transfers may be performed where applicable to limit further exposure to
incompatible work environments.

BEAETXHGREE  URFEEETANEMUAE  REIEITREMmE
IR 1R R R B

In case staff members are involved with tasks which may be potentially
hazardous, provide appropriate instruments and suitable equipment for its
employees to protect their wellbeing.

AYRBREEERIFNETIRUEETIAMRREG REERERZE

Provide fire and emergency drill trainings for employees, and conduct regular
fire drills

B TRMH R EBERIE > X EHETHBER

Offices are also designed with the consideration of ergonomics limit the
likelihood of occupational injuries.

MAERAARBIRFREERS  MESH T HEARREME

Provide refreshments to staff during summer period, to reduce the risk of heat
stroke.

BEXBERETRMRE FEXAPSHNER
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Preventing COVID-19

The epidemic has caused a global public health crisis, we have
actively done a good job in epidemic prevention and control in the
face of a challenging epidemic crisis. Regardless of the workplace
in Hong Kong or the PRC, we abide by the local epidemic
prevention and control guidelines, including but not limited to
the Guidelines on Prevention of COVID-19 for the General public
issued by the Center for Health Protection and the COVID-19

Prevention and Control Plan issued by the State Council.

We have also implemented a series of safety measures for
purposes of protecting the safety of our employees as well as
our customers. This includes the mandatory usage of surgical
face masks and monitoring of body temperature for our staff,
regular disinfection of common areas, and providing training
sessions for our employees to inform them about COVID-19. As
for our hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business,
we have established a standard operation procedure to reduce
our employees’ exposure to external parties to lower the chances
of contracting the virus. According to the requirements of the
local government, we will help the patients to do COVID-19 test
before undergoing hemodialysis treatment to ensure the health of
patients and staff. We offered flexible working hours for our staff
in Hong Kong. Staff are allowed to work from home if necessary
and we provided them with masks for daily use. We strongly
encourage our staff in the PRC and Hong Kong to support the

government’s preventive measures by actively taking vaccinations.

We demonstrated how a pre-screening triage
position works.

HZAIBRTRARDZEUNEFER -

o

Bbi- A& RERWE

FEBSCOVID-19

BEERERNAEFELE EHT WK
HHBELK MBI RENIE - BH
EBERPEANMN TIESR > HMEBET
EMMEERZEES BEERBRRELER
EhOBEMEHEE AR TER2019B R EE R
eS| ) REFHERE M G Sk mE
KEFEFE) o

HATERT —RINZ2HERRFESTIN
ERNZE2 AFAFNERMNOE -HE
TETREREN BAHTRETERHES
kBB TRHEIRE  BEGMASNAR
COVID-19MY R ERMES - HF b > S MK
BITARER WABILTRENREER
DB TEINRNEE M REEF O
REFCOVID- 19 &R = & 1 o IR 2 B
FiF BB PIBY 223K > T2 A 1T MR IE T8 R A
BPIE SBEMPIEITCOVID- 1988 A » URER
BARBEINRE HARKEKREEET
REEEN T ERRE > £ 28 &2 th I
ARIF ERAMAREEEMBENOS -3
PRBEEBEAETEAMNEENE T REGE
TR A R BURT BB & $E 5 o

We provided trainings to
employees for proper wearing
personal protective equipment.
BMfmETRHFEZMEA
RERFRYENAR -

e
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group believes that staff training and development are
important to the sustainable development of the business. The
Group encourages employees to continue training and further
education to learn new knowledge and expand into new fields. To
this end, we have formulated an annual training plan to provide
employees with different types of internal and external training to

enhance their personal capabilities and professional knowledge.

Since government policies with regards to medications and
other associated regulations are frequently revised, the Group
also provides subsidies for employees to consistently acquire
latest knowledge to support their development of professional
knowledge. Upon completion of the training courses, reviews are
performed in effort to further optimize future in-house training
programs. We also provide further education opportunities to our
nursing team as we arranged them to attend training in hospitals

in the top-3 tiers.

To facilitate the understanding of the Group, an induction training
program is provided to all our new recruits. The training program
covers the Group's history, operating philosophy, business process
and corporate culture. Since the specifics of tasks and situations
encountered during daily work cannot be taught comprehensively
in a classroom environment, experienced staff are arranged to
guide new employees and provide them with guidance on a daily

basis to adapt to the job position smoothly.

Employees participated in learning and
exchange sessions.

ET2HBATRG -
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Employees were undergoing
clinical training.
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During the Reporting Period, training data by gender and R E AR B E R & EE R 8 2 El

employee category is as follows: BT .
Percentage of Average Training Hours
Employee Training Data Employees Trained Completed Per Employee
B S EN&E ZINEIBRSL BRI ZNNTYRE
(%) (hours)
(B 4%EE) (7)vE)
By gender
R85
Male 80% 3
Bt
Female 79% 3
g3

By employee category

rRESENES
Senior management 43% 11
SREERE
Middle management 78% 10
iR EIEE
General staff 79% 1
—RET
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is an environmentally responsible corporation, and
we must not forget our responsibility to protect the environment
while pursuing business development. We strive to promote the
development of a green cycle in the environment, social and
economy, and position one of the long-term goals to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions related to operations. The Group's
business does not involve a significant impact on the environment
or natural resources, but we still committed to reducing the

impacts on the surrounding environment during our operations.

The Group strive to comply with laws and regulations related
to environmental protection, including but not limited to the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on Environmental Impact Assessment, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes, Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Regulations on the Administration of
Medical Wastes, Measures for Medical Wastes Management of
Medical and Health Institutions, Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311 of the Law of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Law of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that have

a significant impact on the Group.
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Combatting Climate Change

The international society is paying increasing attention to
climate change, and we are fully aware of the risks associated
with climate change in our business. Climate change has led to
frequent extreme weather events. For pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, the increased frequency and intensity
of extreme weather events (such as heavy rains, typhoons, etc.)
may affect the transportation of drugs and increase the time for
drugs to be transported to medical institutions. For hemodialysis
treatment and consulting business, extreme heat or cold may
affect patients who need hemodialysis treatment, for example, it

may worsen their physical condition.

The Group has developed policies such as Typhoon Contingency
Plan to address the potential threats posed by climate change
with regard to the possible impacts of these extreme weather
conditions. We develop appropriate workflows and measures,
including back-up plans, to prevent or mitigate the impacts of
climate change on the transport or treatment of medicines. In
addition, we have developed extreme weather management
measures to address more frequent extreme weather events due
to climate change. For example, we set out work arrangements
in our Employee Handbook for different typhoon and rainstorm
situations to ensure the safety of our employees while maintaining
our business operations. As a responsible company, we are also
committed to reducing wastes and greenhouse gas emissions
from our business, providing energy management and efficiency
improvement of energy consumption equipment, thereby reducing

greenhouse gas and exhaust emissions.

BB AL R ERWmS
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Air Pollutants and Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
Management

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions are mainly associated with electricity consumption
from our storage warehouse for pharmaceutical products and
hemodialysis centres. All our warehouse and hemodialysis
treatment centers are equipped with environmental control
measures, where temperature and humidity are regulated
according to seasonal changes to ensure the quality of the
medicine held within our premises. The Group's logistics
department is responsible for the delivery of goods, during
which the consumption of fossil fuels results in the emission of
greenhouse gases into the atmosphere. Taking into consideration
the potential environmental impacts of our logistics activity, the
delivery routes taken by our delivery vehicles have been optimized
to minimize fuel consumption and associated emissions. We are
committed to reducing emissions and greenhouse gas emissions

through the implementation of the above measures.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group's air pollutants and REREME  FEBENER AR EREBHK

greenhouse gas emissions data is as follows: BT .
Types Unit 2021/22 2020/21
Rl Efi 2021/22%F 2020/214%

Air Pollutants

s Rk
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) Kg 14.36 26.87
A EH(NOY Ny
Sulphur oxides (SOx) Kg 0.20 0.45
A 1E4(S0y) Ny
Particulate matters (PM) Kg 0.66 1.44
FERLYI(PM) NS

Greenhouse Gas Emission’

BEREHR
Total greenhouse gas emission Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 670.08 490.46
MAEREBHN NE_AIEREE
Scope 1 - Direct emissions Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 40.32 84.66
HE1—EEHNR A _AIEREE
Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 629.76 405.80
B [E2 — AR 1B A _HIEREE
Total greenhouse gas emission intensity Tonnes CO: equivalent/ 0.00? 0.00?
HRERBHREE thousand HK$ revenue
AM_EEHREE THETKE
Note 1:  Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated in the unit of carbon el RERBHEREBEU_SLEREER
dioxide equivalent. e
Note 2, 3: The actual value is 0.004. Hi2,3 1 BEHEFR0.004¢

BEREEZERERAR 49
2021/22 &R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE g RERRE

Sustainable Consumption of Energy

We are committed to implementing energy-saving measures to
increase energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption. During
the Reporting Period, the Group participated in the Electrical
Equipment Upgrade Scheme by CLP Holdings Limited to upgrade
the lighting equipment in its Hong Kong office to LED lights.
In total, we replaced 48 bulbs with LED bulbs. As Harbour City
tenants, we also participated in the Energy Savings Charter 2022
and the 4Ts Charter organized by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department. In addition, our internal energy-saving

measures include:

Limit the use of air conditioning by setting the facilities to 26

degree Celsius;

o Promote energy saving practices including green commuting,

carpooling through employee handbook;

° Turn off electric devices when they leave their seats;

o Use energy efficient equipment; and

o Arrange inspection by designed personnel to ensure
electrical equipment and lighting are switched off during

non-office hours.

50 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

&R

IR B i — & 51 BY & 8E #8 1it LAE 10 BE TR
Mm KRR RIS HE ~&E2
BTHPEBHARABDEPNHEREA
BB REEMAEZTANRARBARE
LEDJE - T FIA8 H 48 MUE B B BLEDIE R -
ERBBHAR RATSHEMAKEIREE
SIAY(ENREAY EE2022) K ( ATSHIE ) o It >
KPP ENRERE M B245

. REEXRERER BEAREAER
26 ;

e FBEIFMAZBTHEEMHARR
BERBEBRITHMZE GIHE ;

s HMAEMREEZEMEFRERHEN

=5 .
=) )

o ERESERE UK

e ZRHFEABKE BEESRKBERR
FRTE I ¥ 2 s ] ARy (R 4S5 BRI A o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE- g REBRRG

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy consumption REREHAR > HMIERHESENT :

data is as follows:

Types Unit 2021/22 2020/21
=h Efi 2021/22%F 2020/214%
Total energy consumption MWh 1,192.27 1,048.62
ARREIRHFE FEF B
Petrol consumption MWh 88.37 235.89
FURIHFE T T 55
Diesel consumption MWh 0.30 0.20
SOHHFE TE T 5 5
Natural gas consumption MWh 71.37 78.51
RARHFE TE T 5 BF
Electricity consumption MWh 1,032.23 734.02
BIIHFE TE T 5.5
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/thousand HK$ revenue 0.01 0.01
BEERHERE FEFREFHETRE
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Waste Management

The Group is committed to implementing waste reduction at the
source, and properly disposing of the produced waste to reduce
the impact on the environment and ecosystem. The Group has
established waste management procedures for classification and

disposal of wastes generated during our daily operations.

In terms of hazardous waste, the Group returns the medicine
requiring disposal to the supplier or deliver it to medical waste
contractors designated by the government, in accordance with
our Loss Reporting and Destruction Policy. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not encounter any material cases where
goods required return to the supplier due to defects nor
generated any hazardous. For non-hazardous waste, we support
waste reduction at source and actively upgrade its electronic office
system, such as enterprise resource planning system to enhance
communication among employees and also reduce the use of
paper for information dissemination. We encourage recycling and

set up waste recycling procedures:

EERYIEE

FEERHERRERE TZEREEE
ENEY REHRREREEZE - RMEIL
TEEVEERF BERXEINEREEAR
REEPELENERY-

FEREYSTE ~EBERARENENR
OEHEENZR(RIBAHEREEFE) R
HEREENBEREYMREANEBETRE
B-RBESHE 2&EEXRERINEAERE
FiREMBREAMEEIAEEEEZY L
BRENER - ETEEEYAEH RMAXFRE
WEE > BMIBEMBEFMARG AIUEEER
SERM LARFEMBETZENBRE B
LA ERAESXNEERS - RFIE
BTIREBR URIERVEWER :

o,

Classification 948 mes)  Collection UL EE

Recycling Bl

Separate general waste

locations
BWMAE—REEYMDE
72 BB PR [B) 4L & 4 fH B8

Collect classified waste

in the office and provide regularly
waste classification TGS EBNEYE R
facilities at different Wy g

Utilize local recycling
facilities to recycle
generated waste
I /3 & st A9 [0 U 5% B (5] 4R
FREENEEY
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In addition to hazardous and non-hazardous waste, a large
amount of medical wastewater is generated during the
hemodialysis process. The Group strictly adheres to the laws and
regulations in relation to medical sewage discharge to dispose
of such wastewater, through collecting it in a sewage tank,
and discharge it to municipal sewage pipes after biochemical
treatment and chlorine dioxide disinfection to make sure the
sewages are upon reaching water quality standards. During the
Reporting Period, we strictly monitor the wastewater and conduct
sampling test to ensure the absence of intestinal infectious

bacteria.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s waste produced is as

BB AL R ERWmS

BRTYASMESHNEY ETHRERERE
FEELEAREBREB K- FAEERRERER
BEKBERNBRZEZRRERREEELEE
Ko m—IRERIEKH KBECREN SR
fERES I EKEEREEHRETEISK
B8 - HAE > FFI g RS B B KM AR S
wA RREREERE

RESHE ZEENEERVEEDT !

follows:

Types Unit 2021/22 2020/21
BERMESR Efi 2021/22% 2020/214%
Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes 6.30 6.00
BEBEYES A

Total non-hazardous waste intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.04 0.05
BEBEYEETRE AR/ FRTWE

Total hazardous waste Tonnes 0.10 0.10
EEREYEE YN

Total hazardous waste intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.00' 0.00?
EEEEYEERE AR/ FRTHE

Total wastewater m?3 735.74 713.64
BIKEERE IR

Note 1: The actual value is 0.0006.

Note 2: The actual value is 0.0009.

CEREF40.0006°

HaE2 (ERHFA0.0009°
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Water Conservation

The Group’s business does not involve significant use of water,
and we have not encountered any issue in sourcing water that
is fit the purpose. Our main source of water consumption comes
from our employees’ daily water usage. The group stipulates
internal water usage guidelines in the Employee Handbook and
strives to integrate the concept of water conservation into its
operations to improve water efficiency. We also post reminders
in the restrooms to promote the correct attitude towards water
usage to our employees. During the Reporting Period, we
responded to the “World Water Day” on March 22 to advertise
to employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s data on

water consumption is as follows:

Ei&IKE IR
FEMEBA ST REANBKER ERI
BRAKRELETIEFAME - KMETENH
KEFEREEIHERAK - AEBEELF
MAREEANIBEKFR BORES KSR
AEEBEPURSAKEZE - BATEEXEF
HMRMEREAS mET ERERMNAKE
EoRiEHHm RMELE3IF228 MR K
B o HETETE#R - NRESHME ~EEE
BKERNEZENT :

Types Unit 2021/22 2020/21
KERHFE Efi 2021/22% 2020/21%
Total water consumption m3 49,050.17 57,933.00
ek E IHAK

Total water consumption intensity m3/thousand HK$ revenue 0.32 0.51
HFEKEE MFHKSFTERTRE

Reducing Packaging Material

The Group consumes packaging materials for the delivery of
pharmaceutical goods to its customers. We try to avoid providing
plastic bags to our customers to limit the use of plastic bags.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's consumption of

packaging materials is as follows:

L BRERE
AEEHENSEMHERERNIVERTE
FrTEAR BRNRBE -HMABEBRR
mERREEEHR LURVERBERE KK
SHE AEENSRYEEEENT ¢

Packaging Material Unit 2021/22 2020/21
BRMEERE B 2021/22% 2020/214%
Total packaging material Tonnes 143.70 143.70
MERYEHEE yNL]

Total packaging material intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.93 1.26
MERYELHERE AR/ FRTHE
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group serves customers with heart, and also cares about
serving the community. As a company that provides hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC, we focus
on promoting health activities and promoting the message of
kidney health caring in the community. During the Reporting
Period, we continued to promote kidney health, including inviting
experts to hold health talks, visiting patients’ homes for follow-
up and sending daily necessities and birthday gifts. In order to
fight the epidemic together, we have strongly cooperated with the

government in promoting COVID-19 prevention knowledges.

In the future, the Group looks forward to contributing more to the
community. We strive to use the resources to support people in

need and promote healthy living.

We organized events for World Kidney Day.
RMAtASEASTED-

BB AL R ERWmS

HERE

AEEUORBERER  EERAORBLE - F
AFRBEREHMRENABRREHES
NEFE RAFEINEHEEERREZS B
HREIBREEENAR - RRSHE > RM®
BEEBRER QREBRERBITRERSR
BEREBARPETRSUREL B > 10X
MAERAmAEBRMZFT UL BTHERD
g RMRNESBFEHEAEMCOVID-19
BOSEEE ©

B s&EEHEEAHEFEES TN I
SHABESERXEATEALRIERER
RETE

7 .-'.*‘;’1 i

We invited experts to give health
seminars.

HPBFEIETREHAE
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B AL KB WmS

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ({818 -t ERE4ikEI5E|)ZED|
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHIE A 5 EE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

54 I 4% B8 AR E
Governance A statement from the board containing the following elements: Sustainable
Structure i a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; Governance
BEIAREE ii.  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the EI{FEEEEA
process used to evaluate, prioritize, and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
iii.  how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.
MEFFREHMNEH ERHBTIANS
. WEESEHREBE - HEREARAZTEMNEE;
i. EFgNRE-HEREABEAHKRE @FETH -ERXRFFRK
E/DEEE’JLEJR HERELAEMEE (BEHETAEFTNER)
AR ;
iii. %%‘%‘ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁlﬁiﬁ HEREREMEREEE ) MREE MU
HEETAEHHRE
Reporting A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the Reporting Reporting Principles
Principles Principles (Materiality, Quantitative and Consistency) in the preparation of ¥R /R 8l
FEIRER A the ESG report.
HANBEERERRE HEREARSFUNGTEAERRR (EEMH -
EEM—8M) -
Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and Reporting Period
Boundary describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are and Scope
BE 2R #6 [ included in the ESG report. RS A R EE

BERE - HEREABRTHNEREE  RFANNERLEERHEFTAA
RE-HEREABRIHNBE-
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Bbi- A& RERWE

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 48
- continued

Aspect Content

FTEHE RE

(RIE-HERESHSIES )RS

Section/Remarks

EH

"Comply or explain” Provisions

R 38 5T 7L AR R 1 15 S

A. Environment

A IEfF

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT : B4

General Disclosure Information on:

— IR E (a)

the policies; and

Environmental

Protection

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant IRiE{R:&

impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

EBERKRERBHR RKERI NS - AERBEREYNESE
=3
(@) HR; &
(b) BETFHBETABEARENEMEERROINER
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Pollutants and
B TEEE R AB RABE R B o GHG Management
BRERAEREEIRE
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
and, where appropriate, intensity.
BHiZ (8E1) MEEREE (EE2) AER BN ERBE-
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Waste Management
FRELEEEREREYEEREE- EEEYEIE
BEEEZERARAR
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF-HtEFREA
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — &

— continued

Aspect Content

TEHE P

wmEHRSIDRSI

Section/Remarks

EH

Aspect A1: Emissions — continued

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.

FRELEEERRMBERTE

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HHPAETINHFREE R B EDNELEBRARINT R -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HAREEERESEEYNG L RWAFIZAREERERAESD
ELEBRFERIA T R -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 . BEER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
—MRIRE raw materials.

EREAER (BEER KREMEMR) K-
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
REVNSSNERER SEEEREEERTE-

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

MIEKEREE-
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 12 RERREIESINFESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHE P =3

Aspect A2: Use of Resources — continued

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Sustainable
achieve them. Consumption of
BAPRET IR RERANEEERAENELEBRFRARIATER - Energy
ERER
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for =~ Water Conservation

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.  BIZy/KEIR
R EGER KR LR B EABE URMEIIZINBAKEZEERAE
TS L BRI S B o

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with Reducing Packaging
reference to per unit produced. Material
N mFTAEEMENEERSEEEULE- W AR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3  IRIERRAEIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment  Environmental

— M= and natural resources. Protection
BEZETAHRERRAERERNERTENBER IRIBRE
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and actions taken to manage them.
B X EHHRRERRAERNEARXERERNEEFBT BT
o
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- (12 RERREIESINFES]
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHE P =3

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4 . RIZE1E

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Combatting Climate
— iR EE which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Change

A REHEERAEEHETAEERENEARFEMEENKRR - BHREE(E

A4 .1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage

them.

HEBRERAEEHBTAEERENERRBREREE  RMEHTH-
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIFE- (L EREREREIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

- continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
FEHE S BHE s

B. Society

B. #HE

Employment and Labour Practices

EBREKRELER

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : E1E
General Disclosure Information on: Caring For
— BRI E (a) the policies; and Employees;
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Employment Policy
impact on the issuer FAZET; EBEBE
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BN RERE -BEREA TEHE - RA - TEHE Sl R
RUREMEBEREFA
(@) HBR; R
(b) BFHETABEATENHEBZERERAGINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical Employee Profile
region. BTHE
Bt BEEE FRENKMEE DHNESBH -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BIER - ERENRER SHNEERKLER
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— continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHE P =3

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmEB2 : @EEZE

General Disclosure Information on: Occupational Safety
—RINE (a) the policies; and and Health
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Wi % 2 B #E
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FRMZE2TIFRERRERESECHELBEN
(@ HBR; R
(b) ETFHETABEAZENMHERZERRANER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BEERFE) SFEITHNABKLE.

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
ETEIERTIEHE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored.

PR MN B ERREL 2 URERRTHERS A
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 12 RERREIESINFESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHE P =3

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEB3 : &Kl

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Employee
— iR EE duties at work. Description of training activities. Development and
BRRARERIT TFH &R & R B AE A B - # i 1B aIlES Training
BT #REAEI
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

RN RESEHNBSHNZIEEB DL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

BN REEENE D BREERERIIN TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmEB4 : & TR

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
— R E (a) the policies; and &5 T 28
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

EREMLEE T SaGE T
() BEK; &
(b) BFHETABEATEMNMBRERRBANZR -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

Rt BB AR LB R B T K5aHI% T o
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF-HtEFREA
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — &

— continued

Aspect Content

TEHE P

wmEHRSIDRSI

Section/Remarks

EH

Aspect B4: Labour Standards — continued
fEHEB4 : 5 T#RA|—#&

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices
when discovered.

B EZRRERBREHRE BB R EREROD R

Operating Practices
EEIE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS | HERSIE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
—iRiREE EEMEENIRIERTERABEBER-
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RrE SN HERHE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

Mt ERAEAHERNES RENTEBEMNNMEEHE  UKERE
BITRERAGE-

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Mt AR HEE S EIRE NIRRT R G RRAVES > URERENT
BEERAE-
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BRI

& RE RS

(RIE-HERESHSIES )RS

AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 48
- continued
Aspect Content Section/Remarks
FTEHE RE =300 ki
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management — continued
[EmEBS @ rEREE—&
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supplier
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored. HESER

RAEHREHEBRREES BRAERMKRBHES > UKRAERRITR

BERHFE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

B6.1

B6.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

Operating Practices
ZEEG

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

BERfMREERMRFNREALZE2 B REMMEBSIEURBHT

EHY
() BE; &
(b) BTFHBETABEARZEZENERERRRAINEN-

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety Product and Service

and health reasons.

EBENEEXERMBPRREREREAMARIKN S

Quality
EmkRHFEEE

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they After-sale Service

are dealt with.

RERRERRRBVRFUBUREHR TG E-

and Complaint

Management

ERRBRIRFEE
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIE -t ERERERSEIES)ESI

AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — &

- continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
FTEHE RNE =300 ki

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility — continued
[EHEB6 : EmMBE—4&

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual Operating Practices
property rights. EEIER
B R RIERHEEBRNER -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product and Service
HAEERTEBREREmBIKERF- Quality
EmRRBER
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Customer Privacy

implemented and monitored. Protection
HHHBEERRERMRER  URBERRITRERG A B R MERE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[EEB7 : R&EJS

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI ARG B3R BREF R R ERAY ¢

(a) HBZE R
(b) BFHETAREARTENHERZERKRRGNER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHETANHEEERE T ESENESHAZHNHE ki
FREER o
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— continued

Aspect Content Section/Remarks
TEHE P =3

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption — continued
[BEB7 : RES—4&

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how  Anti-corruption and
they are implemented and monitored. Anti-fraud
M B EERBRER  UWRAERRITRERS A RESEE

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HitmEERE TRENRESHE-

Community

&

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EMEBS : t&@IEE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
— R E communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities takes Investment
into consideration communities’ interests. HERE
BRUHHES2ER TR EEMEHEREENRREER THETTRHLE
F ZR A BUER ©
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
EAEREE-
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas.
EEIBEMBAERC
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges
the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value, accountability and
transparency of the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year under review, the Company had revised the Terms
of Reference for its Audit Committee in order to fully comply
with the amendments to the Listing Rules in relation to corporate
governance that took effect since 1 January 2021.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of
the Company, to the date of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) since 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model code for
securities transactions by Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including one executive director, one non-executive director

and three independent non-executive directors:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Resigned on 15 October 2021)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Appointed on 15 October 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any, are set out in the section entitled
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

in the annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group's businesses to the
executive Director, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.
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Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing
Rules have been sent to the Directors for their awareness
of the latest development on regulatory requirements, to
ensure that they are fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After the former
chairman resigned from the Company in 2014, there is no
position of the chairman. The company did not have the
chairman during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Board
considered that the existing Board members were able to
share the power and responsibilities of chairman among

themselves during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 1 April 2020 and up to
the date of the report. The Company will, from time to
time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes,
including the establishment of the role of the chairman.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to his or her re-
appointment by the Company at an annual general meeting
upon such Director’s retirement and offering himself for re-
election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Ho Man both possess
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Tam
confirmed that he had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, an Audit Committee and
a Remuneration Committee (collectively “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the
website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange, and
are available to shareholders. Members of each of these
committees are independent non-executive Directors. The
list of the Chairman and of members of each committee is
set out in each of the following Board committee section.
The meeting procedures follow the statutory procedures for

Board meetings.

The committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and in appropriate circumstances, the
Company can retain external auditors, financial advisors and
lawyers and other relevant independent professionals to
provide independent professional advice to assist members
of the committees in fulfilling their responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee has
adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code and made recommendations to the Board on
the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management. The members of
Remuneration Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include

(but without limitation):

(i)  making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

policies on such remuneration;

(i) determining the remuneration packages of all
individual executive Directors and the senior
management and making recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

and

(iii)  reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with the relevant contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of specific remuneration package
of all executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and making recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-

based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which is
posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange. The members of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination and corporate

governance committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

() making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and
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(d) keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall
meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors
at the forthcoming general meetings of the Company and
the terms of reference of the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Policy”). The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits
of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through engaging directors in possession
of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, required experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, etc. The composition,
experience and balance of skills of the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board.
The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its

continued effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

3 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
In order to comply with the amended CG Code, the
Board adopted the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee on 31 December 2018. The members of Audit

Committee for the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and

accounts and the interim report;

(c) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least 2 regular meetings
in a year to review and discuss the interim and annual
financial statements of the Company. Additional meetings of

the Audit Committee may be held as and when required.
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The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors
at least once a year. The external auditors may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee
held 3 meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group's
audited consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
March 2022 were reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board is collectively responsible for performing corporate

governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Under the Company’s Code, the Board may delegate part
of the above duties to the Company’s board committees.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Board
has, on its own and through the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and Audit Committee, fulfilled the
above corporate governance duties. The Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee assisted the Board to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management.
The Audit Committee assisted the Board to review the
Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report and the policy on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’

ATTENDANCE

CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has held 7
meetings. One executive Director and all independent non-

executive Directors attended all the meetings.

All members of the Board and the Company's external
auditors attended the 2021 annual general meeting (“2021
AGM").
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Attendance record of each Director at the 2021 AGM and

the meetings of the Board, together with the meetings of

the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee during the year ended 31 March

2022 are set out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY/ ERERY
Nomination
and Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Governance
Board Committee Committee Committee 2021 AGM
Rek  CZBZ-f
Name of Directors BEfth Bzg BNZEE HWEEE GRERZEE REREEAE
Executive Directors gz
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Wang Jia Junft n NAR B 4/4 33 n
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Resigned on 15 October 2021)  $EBZT (RZB-—F
+B+EBET) 37 NARER NAREBH NARER 1N
Non-executive Director FuTES
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Appointed on 15 October 2021) BHER4E (R-Z-—-F
TE+EREZA) 37 NATER NATER NARER NARER
Independent non-executive Directors BupqEs
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BERRE n 33 44 33 171
Dr. Liu Yongping AETEL 1 33 4/4 33 111
Mr. Ho Man fEks 1 33 44 33 111
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis, and
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
with applicable disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.

In respect of code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, Directors
are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on

pages 110 to 119 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the
Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to assist the

Board in fulfilling the above responsibilities.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

MEREZ
EFNERERRETEANREFERR
AUMBBRERNEE -EFTCREBEE
BEERRAIEEZEAGMBRER LB
ERMERAGEZEFHBR - RAGEZ
ERAVBREENRERGSER T
BERE L TR KRIRBAEREEROIE
HREZERRKE - EFTEEREE
Egsts UESEEREE T R
TEBMZMBER -

MEREERTRTAMRNEC I3 &
EUNARBEEATHAMSEHABRA
EEREXELQABDFEEENES -

EATINEZHBMBEE St ERAE
AT ZHBEEHNEERFEI10E
198 Z B ZH MR E 1 — &R

PEREEHE R B R B IR R 4

EFERNHEEHFAREERRA
WEZRGONA UWREXEENE
E-ZRMSEEERMMIEHFRAREE
EAEFERNRAR LEEMAHR
EARRBERAFIBRFHEGEMIFESR
HYfREE ©

BRZEGEEFTREUBINESS
BT LIRS -



During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions, and considered the
risk management and informed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. The Board concluded that the risk management

and internal control systems are adequate and effective.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems include a well-defined management
structure with limits of authority, clear policies, standard
operation procedures, and risk control self-assessment
conducted for all major operating units of the Group. The
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage risks failure
in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, but the
management is responsible for designing and implementing
internal control systems to manage all kinds of risks faced
by the Group. The operating units and support functions are
facilitated and coordinated by the management, and ensure
that risk management processes and mitigation plans follow
good practices and guidelines established in their day-to-day

operations.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is
evaluated at least annually to update the progress of risk

monitoring efforts.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Management will assess the nature and impact of risk, and
report issues to the Board. The Group identifies outside
and inside events by reviewing its external and internal
environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group's ability to achieve its

strategy and business objectives.

The Board, according to the risk report, would take
appropriate action to eliminate the risks. Risks which cannot
be accepted or are beyond the Company’s risk appetite are
transferred, eliminated or controlled through risk mitigation
measures. Each risk mitigation measure has a process owner
who is a Department Manager and a target completion date
is assigned to ensure accountability. Risks owners are also
responsible for monitoring the status of the risk mitigation

measures for risks under their purview.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board and Audit Committee review the internal control
issues identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities
and management, and evaluates the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. To further enhance control awareness,
the Group has also approved launching a whistleblowing
policy or employees to raise any concerns about possible

improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

Inside Information Policy

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company's legal advisor also assists the Board to assess
whether the relevant information is considered to be
inside information which needs to be disclosed as soon as

reasonably practicable.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed

as the Company’s external auditors since the Company’s
incorporation. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external

auditors.

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out below:
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Nature of services RFEMEE £% (F#&x)
Audit services BEIZRFE 744
Non-audit services JEEIZARTE S
Total 4Est 744
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AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings
in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down
in the Listing Rules and the articles of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the website of the Stock Exchange and of the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 33, was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April 2020
and the executive Director since 31 August 2018. Mr. Wang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Management from Stony
Brook University in the United States of America in 2011. He
also obtained a master’'s degree in Health Administration from
Columbia University in the United State of America in 2017. He
has 4 years of experience in the areas of business analysis and
development across major cities in the PRC and was the Vice
President (Projects Management) of the Company since 1 August
2018 and was responsible for developing and implementing
business strategies of the Company in the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Xiao Zhixin (“Dr. Xiao"), aged 81, was appointed as a non-
executive Director, with effect from 15 October 2021. Dr. Xiao
has over 50 years of experience in both medical practice and
management in the healthcare sector in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in clinical
medicine from Jilin Medical University” (52 %l A&)in the PRC
in 1964. Since his graduation from the medical school in Jilin
Medical University, Dr. Xiao has worked as a medical practitioner
in Jilin No. 4 People's Hospital* (MM AREPRR) until May
2018. From May 2018 to July 2018, Dr. Xiao was a medical
practitioner in Jining Rencheng Hanjun Beauty Hospital” G& Z{F
IEREE =AM . Dr. Xiao was a medical practitioner in Zhuhai
Jiulong Hospital” (Bk /8 N.BEE&BT) from July 2018 to April 2019.
From April 2019 to present, Dr. Xiao is a medical practitioner in
Zhuhai Yimei Ladies Medical Beauty Clinic* (BkiBREREREE
BESFR).

s English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director since 11 April 2003. Mr. Wong obtained
a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University
in July 1991. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also the independent
non-executive director of Lerthai Group Limited (stock code: 112)
since December 2018, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8046), a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, since June 2018 and up to 2 July 2019, the
date on which its shares were delisted. Mr. Wong was also the
independent non-executive director Xinhua News Media Holdings
Limited (stock code: 309) between February 2020 and 31 August
2021.
directorship in any other public companies the securities of which

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not hold any

are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the
last three years.

Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. He has held various positions, including chief financial
officer, director and company secretary in different companies
in Hong Kong, where he has experience in handling corporate
finance transactions such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund

raising and restructuring.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 February 2014. Dr. Liu is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 629, formerly known as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited)
since June 2010 whose shares are listed on the main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Dr. Liu was the independent non-executive
director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2326) between June 2018 and November 2019 whose
shares are listed on the main board of Stock Exchange. Save
as disclosed above, Dr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any

securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho"), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 February 2018. Mr.
Ho has over 20 years of working experience in private equity
investment and finance and is currently the managing director of
an investment holding company. Prior to that, Mr. Ho served as
an executive partner representative of a Chengdu-based private
equity investment fund from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr.
Ho worked for a Hong Kong-based private fund management
company during January 2010 to December 2013 and was the
managing director and head of China growth and expansion
capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK) Limited from August 1997 to
October 2009.

HH R CE BN B B A

BETEEL (ALY -oom BT —WEF
AR+ tREREBIUIFATES 2B
TAETERRERMIE S —BERBRMEBM
ZEB B LREEATERHEEIRRS
TEEAE_TEER -IBEIRN-ANT
FEERRAKRS  BIRIZEMET 20U B
—ANEEEERFTERB - ERTEE L
BAl-BFRARBDZEEN FELE T —
SENBRBETIREERERBRAR (K
MRS 629 AIMBINEREZERAMRAST
HRORBMIZMERLS) 2BUERTE
FABREIN_T-NERABEE-_ZT—H
F+—REEMRBIEZRARAE (RHRK
5% 123260 HRMINERXFAER L) Z2\IL
FRITEF R EXFREESI 2ELNE
FZFRLEENESREBHBEINZEMFE
FHBELHZENEMARABEEEFNE
ERF-

fAagkE (MIk%E)) 52 RIE—N\EZ
B+ NBEZEABUFNITES AEE
RIMWERERERMEFEAREA_+5T
RS RIRA—BREERATZEEHE
K -FIZA B _E——F+_-_BEEC
T-MERA AL EGRITUREBAEM
ZHEREREESZHITEBARR A
TER_E—ZEF—RAE_ZE—=F+2"A
EHR—REAUETEAEMZAEESEER
ARR—NAAEtENBEZZEZAE+AE
FERBSFTAREEES (BB ARAGZ
TENRERERESESECEREE

BEREEZERERAR 87
2021/22 &R



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HH R RCE BN B 8 FEREA

Mr. Ho was an independent non-executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
1152) from November 2016 to July

2019; an independent non-executive director of CIMC-TianDa

Exchange, stock code:

Holdings Company Limited (name changed from China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Limited with effect from 24 April 2018; stock
code: 445) from July 2015 to January 2021 and the company
was privatised in January 2021. Mr. Ho was an independent non-
executive director of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock
code: 1777) between October 2009 and 11 October 2021.

Mr. Ho is independent non-executive director of Fu Shou Yuan
International Group Limited (stock code: 1448), since December
2013;

Concordia Group Ltd (stock code 1172, formerly known as

an independent non-executive director of Magnus

Midas International Holdings Limited) since January 2018; and an
independent non-executive director of Grand Ocean Advanced
Resources Company Limited (stock code: 65) since 22 January
2020, all being companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho did not hold any
directorship in any other public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the

last three years.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s
degree in finance from the London Business School. He is also a

Chartered Financial Analyst.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Sze Kin (“Mr. Tam”), aged 52, holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in finance awarded by Simon
Fraser University in Canada. Mr. Tam is a member of The
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada and a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance,
financial reporting and company secretarial field. Mr. Tam had also
held senior management positions in the listed and private limited

companies in Hong Kong.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report

“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the

together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
including future development in the Group’s business, can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this annual report. The above section form part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group’s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching

off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

The Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses and

enhancing environmental sustainability.
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Report of the Directors
HAEGHRE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the year by business
activities is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraphs headed “Business Review"” under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2022 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 127 of this

report.

In order to ensure the Board maintains an appropriate procedure
on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company, a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) is
adopted by the Board on 8 November 2018 which aims to allow
the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving the Company's liquidity to capture future growth

opportunities.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Dividend Policy of the Company establishes the principles to
ascertain amounts that can be distributed to its shareholders as
dividend by the Company. Subject to the applicable law and its
Articles, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based
on available financial resources, investment requirements and

taking into account optimal shareholders return.
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While determining the nature and quantum of dividend payout,
the Board would take into account the following factors, inter

alia:

. Our financial results;

° our cashflow;

° our shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
o our current and future operations;

o our liquidity and capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 248 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
HAEGHRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$7.360 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined

contribution schemes provided by the relevant provincial and
municipal governments under which the Group and the employees
in the PRC are required to make monthly contributions to these
schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant provincial and

municipal governments.

The Group has arranged the Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee whereby each of the Group
(the employer) and the Hong Kong employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme in accordance with the relevant

legislation.

Details of the Group’s contributions to the retirement benefit
schemes are shown in Note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 124 to 125 respectively. Pursuant to applicable
statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands, the Company did not
have reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as at
31 March 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company’'s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
11.10% of the Group's revenue and the Group’s five largest

customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 24.04%.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
represented approximately 48.04% of the Group's total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 19.77% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Resigned on 15 October 2021)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Appointed on 15 October 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company's Articles
of Association, Dr. Xiao Zhixin, will retire and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election as a non-executive Director at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Ho Man, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since April 2013. Pursuant to
Code Provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, if an independent non-executive
Director has served more than nine years, such Director’s further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders, hence Mr. Wong's re-election
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM. In view of Mr. Wong having served
as an independent nonexecutive Director for more than nine
years, the Board took into consideration Mr. Wong's valuable
contributions, impartial opinions and independent guidance over
the years at office, the continuing demonstration of his character,
integrity and experience, and is of the view that Mr. Wong has
and will continue to maintain his independence and will be able
to continue to discharge his role as an independent non-executive
Director effectively and independently. The Board is also of the
view that Mr. Wong’s in-depth understanding of the Group’s
business operations and his extensive experience and expertise
in the areas of corporate finance and accounting can continue
to bring a wide spectrum of insights to the Board and is in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has received from Mr. Wong a confirmation of
independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and Mr.

Wong did not engage in any executive management of the Group.

All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set on pages 85 to 88 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 31 August 2018
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less then three months’ notice in
writing. Mr. Wang Jia Jun has entered into a letter of employment
with the Company to act as the Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 1 April 2020.

Dr. Xiao Zhixin has been appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 15 October 2021
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than one months’ notice in

writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter
until either the independent non-executive Director or the
Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other party

not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 27 February 2014 which will continue
thereafter until either the independent non-executive Director or
the Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other

party not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ho Man has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 14 February
2018 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than three months’

written notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was
in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policy of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Yung Kai Lai
(“Ms. Yung”), spouse of Mr. Wang Jia Jun, the executive Director,
had invested in certain clinics which were engaged in hemodialysis
treatment. As advised by Ms. Yung, the clinics that she invested
in are allocated in other cities of the PRC that the Group's clinics
had no presence there. The Board noted the fact that hemodialysis
patients could not travel long distance, e.g. cross cities, for
treatment due to their health issues and affordability. Hence, there
is no direct competition between the hemodialysis treatment offered
by the Group and that offered by the clinics invested by Ms. Yung.
Save as disclosed, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interest and short position in the securities
of the Company
As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in Shares and underlying Shares of the

Report of the Directors
HAEGHE

RERERG RIGHRG ZFE

Company
Total Total Approximate
interests interests in percentage
in ordinary underlying Aggregate of issued
Name of Director Nature of interests Shares Shares interests Shares
HERT
REERZ REMRHZ Rz
Esns EmttE Rz 4EE R Bz  HBHESH
(Note 3)
(H3E3)
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Interest of spouse 156,862,198 2,500,000 163,155,611 29.12%
("Mr. Wang”) (Note 1)
Wang Jia Junfc & @R =
(T'wang%t %) (FiFsE1)
Beneficial owner - 3,793,413
BmEBA
Mr. Wong Hon Kit Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Mr. Wong") (Note 2)
=ERRE (REE) BamEBA
(PizE2)
Dr. Liu Yongping Beneficial owner = 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Dr. Liu") (Note 2)
FEFELT (T8EL)) BaEBA
(MEzE2)
Mr. Ho Man Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Mr. Ho") (Note 2)
ek d (MakE)) (fF2) BEEAA
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang is the beneficial owner of 3,793,413 share options.
Mr. Wang (being the spouse of Ms. Yung) is deemed to be
interested in 2,500,000 share options owned by Ms. Yung.
Power King Investment Development Limited (“Power
King”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Yung, owns a total
of 156,862,198 Shares. Each of Ms. Yung and Mr. Wang is,
therefore, deemed to be interested in the 3,793,413 and
2,500,000 share options respectively and the 156,862,198
Shares held by Power King, under the SFO. Ms. Yung resigned
as the Director with effect from 15 October 2021.

2. Mr. Wong, Dr. Liu and Mr. Ho are interested in share options
which can be exercised to subscribe 140,419 Shares, 140,419
Shares and 140,419 Shares, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2022, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares
or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

(b)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares total issued
Name Nature of interests (Long position) Shares
HBET
i ALEEE
W aiE EEtE RIF&E (FE8) RS 4o
Power King (Note 1) Beneficial owner 156,862,198 28.00%
B (MFsE1) BmEAA
Expert Wealth Investments Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
Expert Wealth Investments Limited R EHIEEED (ME2)
Grand Harbour Finance Limited Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
ShBMEBRR AT REEREEERE (ME2)
Ng Kwok Fai Beneficial owner of controlled 156,862,198 28.00%
corporation (Note 2)
=4 SEREEZEREA A (MEE2)
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Notes:

Power King is interested in 156,862,198 Shares. The issued
share capital of Power King is wholly-owned by Ms. Yung.
Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Power King is interested in under the SFO.

Based on the notifications filed to the Company,
156,862,198 Shares owned by Power King were pledged
to Grand Harbour Finance Limited. Grand Harbour Finance
Limited is wholly owned by Expert Wealth Investments
Limited and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai is the controlling shareholder.
As all these companies were deemed or taken to be
interested in all the security in 156,862,198 Shares by virtue
of the SFO, and therefore Expert Wealth Investments Limited
and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai were deemed to have approximately
28.00% of interest in the Company as at 31 March 2022.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
the Directors, after having made all reasonable enquires,
Grand Harbour Finance Limited and its ultimate owner(s) are
independent from and not connected with the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rule).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their

spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or

had exercised any rights to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS EFERESERFZIBIGE

AND EMPLOYEES
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in KRB BRHESTE 2 BRI N BRETE —& -
the Share Option Scheme section.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, details of share options BHE_Z__HF=-A=+—HLEEER REER
granted to the Directors and employees under the Share Option BZEREGE EEREEERRTEREZFHE

Scheme of the Company were as follows: mE:
Approximate
No. of ercenta?q of
share options the underlying
No. of exercised/ No. of shares
No.of share options cancelled/  share options for the share
share options  granted dunng lapsed durin outstandin options
. outstandin e year ended  the year ende; as a _outstqndmg
. . Exercise price Lasa 31 March 31 March 31 March in the issue
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS 1 April 2021 2022 2&22 2022 Shares
m =
REE ot _
- = i RS
. M= /g, fi= <H i
# R w8 B mdlHE Cif
BHAMH (i T | 114 fig 4
%i%ctors
O/IVr‘ W%n% Z_tsig)cttjt\)%i%s Z_thg)ctot{% 018_—‘&6‘ Octber 2028 0.668 1,293,413 - - 1,293,413 0.23%
ang -3- %)\ —TrHE
SR “¥ZN\EFRIHAR
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.45%
Zely, ZeTgEme _@E%
MEZ+mA —Z=FTEMA-TMA
Ms. Yung (resigned on 24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030
~ 15i0(c ober 2_021)E —g-s4 ~s-sEmA-+mAE 0.190 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.45%
bl 5 _— —Z_7 —5_F1 —THAHE
R £§E¥E) mEZ+mA :?:%@H_qrﬂﬂ
Mr, Wong 26 Octob rims 26 October 2018 - 26, October 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
[t ot 2 % B CE)\EiA-fAAs
o er LT
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - Z_Aﬁ fi 2030 0.190 100,000 - - 100,000 0.02%
ot a1 “e BENA_fMEE
MEZ+mA —Z=TEMA-TMA
%Jr%ult Z_tsig)cttjt\)%i%s Z_thg)ctot{% 018_—#@0ct_gber 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
-5 -5 —T/\AXE
A oLVt
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 100,000 - - 100,000 0.02%
:2%3;& :%%%%EH: _%r =
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Mr.H 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26, October 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
e ot & %ﬁ L S ’ ’
o SEN\ETRAE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 100,000 - - 100,000 0.02%
ot 1 ZeTgEme _@E %
MEZ+mA —Z=TEMA-TMA
Total 6,714,670 = - 6,714,670
&t
1EEmE;I)onees 2_6i0ctoti;2018 ifii()ctoti;fm_—f‘ Oét;ber 2028 0,668 11,689,222 - - 11,689,222 209%
El - -5 -4
i o I
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - Z_Aﬁ ri 2030 0.190  13,370,000(Note) = (1,300,000) 12,070,000 2.15%
- - _%_%%EH —THEZ .
mE=+mA —E-TENA_TWH ()
Total 25,059,222 - (1,300,000) 23,759,222
L
"GE@JPd total 31,773,892 - (1,300,000) 30,473,892 5.44%
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Note:

Among the 3,900,000 share options granted to the employees of
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these share options are
exercisable in the following manner:

(i) up to 30% of the share options granted to each grantee shall
be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23 April 2021;

(i)  up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021 to 23
April 2022; and

(i) all the remaining 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022 to 23
April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24 April 2030.

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the headings”Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the company and its associated corporations” and “Share
Options Granted to Directors and Employees” above and
particulars of the Share Option Scheme as set out in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate and neither the
Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option

scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to
reciprocate their contribution to the Group. As at 31 March 2022,
the maximum number of shares that can be issued according
to the Share Option Scheme was 56,022,213 shares, which is
equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The
number of options that may be granted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
shares immediately after the completion of the listing on the Stock
Exchange. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be
granted to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the substantial shareholders of the Company or the independent
non-executive Directors or any of their respective associates
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. There is no minimum period that the options
must be held before they become exercisable, and the options
granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the Board;
however no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share. Each grantee
shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is
granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date
it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Tenancy agreement entered into with Mr. Wang lJia

Jun (“Mr. Wang”)

On 28 June 2019, Grand Motion Investments Limited* BEH)%
BEABMRAKT ("Grand Motion”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a car rental agreement (“Rental
Agreement”) with Mr. Wang which for rental of motor car. The
term of the lease is from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 with a
rental amount of HK$15,000 per month for the motor car and is

renewable upon the signing of a new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, under the annual cap,
and the total rental charge paid, the Group’s total transaction
amount with Mr. Wang contemplated under Rental Agreement
was HK$180,000.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions required
to be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions or non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr.
Wong Hon Kit, Dr. Liu Yongping and Mr. Ho Man have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have

been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2022, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant events requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2022 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
("“AGM") will be held on Friday, 9 September 2022 at Suite 1801,
18/F., Tower 1, The Gateway, Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 6 September 2022 to Friday, 9
September 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no

transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be
lodged before 15 August 2022) or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or
after 15 August 2022) for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 5 September 2022.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2022
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il S A N
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 120 to
247, comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

MBEEE

PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

EMETEARMARIEMRENRR

Impairment assessment on goodwill

A

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

LRGSR HFRRWE20URGEMBRERMAIZ G HE-

The Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$53,024,000 relating to provision of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC
as at 31 March 2022. The management performed
impairment assessments of the cash generating units
and concluded that impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$46,630,000 was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

AEBREMR _E__F=A=+—HRHEREMHLD
BB ARRBHRBER ZEEL72353,024,00048
o BEEENREEL BMETREN LIS HER
RBE_Z__S=A=+—HULEENEHERIHE
B E518#946,630,0007 7T ©

The management performs an annual impairment test
on the recoverability of the goodwill which is subjective
in nature due to judgments having to be made of
future performance.
EEEHHEZAKREIMETEERENSS  HVA
RERRRBELHZHAEGMAESEEH-

The valuation of goodwill performed by an
independent professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires the
application of significant judgement and estimation
by the management in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The
valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions applied
by the valuer such as pre-tax discount rates and growth
rate used and cash flow projection which can have a
significant impact to the valuation.

B ERIMBEEMAAETZHELENERERE
BetEAEZ - HEERAEEENEER THERZE
EMERAE - THERARRZSBERAIERZRRARE
i Z ERHE R fh st o ZAEHEEMERZ
AERRABRE  AINHEESELEERTEZRR
AR RMAZIEREURBERETRA
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

RAMEERSBERENGETHNREFERE

o Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
assumption and methodologies used in the
calculation;

s EBHFHEEERTEHEREANKREKRTE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on our
Knowledge of the relevant industry;

o MRERMNBRITEMMT(ERRERNTG ERRHRE
BRENEEMY

o Evaluation of management Independent valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectively;

o FMEEEBIUGEMNEE -EHARETEHN;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of business and industry;
and

e MEBRMBEBRITENNS BREAEBRKRNE
B &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o  HRREMRANBABIRNEREREMME-

We found that the management’s judgment, estimates,
assumptions and methodologies made in respect of the
impairment assessment on goodwill were supported by
available evidence.

BAR BB EBRETEFE 2 EEEHE - LR
RAERAUENERSZS-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

MBEER
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PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

EMAETEARMARIEMRENRR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 MUk 5w B 5T

Refer to Note 5(b) and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BRI EGEEMBRERM SO R F22ZURGEMBRARMEAIZ G EER-

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$62,697,000 and
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables of
approximately HK$13,829,000. Provision is made for
lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RIZEZZF=B=+—H> B£ENEZERKRR
IHAREE# #362,697,0008 5 MEBZEKREZEE
B5i8 R E#A#%13,829,0008 7T o & 5 7L B 5 FE UL
EN2HFEIREEREEL -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on allowance for credit losses of trade receivables
included:

MEEEHEZBWRBEZEEHERBEFETGEMS > Hif
ZREFEE !

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
receivables;

e HREEEWNTHNEEEERER GEHENTHE
%) 280 HA FE WU TR I 5T (i FE R IR TR ER IS B S 18 1 1
NERF ;

o Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices;

e FERTHMHEZER UHEAFXNAZAEZ R
IRFRAREC 2 ZEREME ;

o Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables against bank receipts; and

o Dt s N RIBTWIRAIH B 5 BUER R4
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

[Ei = ]

PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

BAETEABFNAEEMREN SR

Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses. Receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer, its geographical location and
its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

EREETIARAEEEERERIE -AREME
BRENREEAREST RERKRENE P BKRE
EFBULFGERERE S REFAEE  HMIEQ
ERREER TEARAGERKRENAZEER
SRE-OME LiREGTEENAIEEEERBEES
B IREARREEBERNSBNRENREAE-
BHEEGEERDREELEEGRAREE L&
AEURBMERRATEEER AR ETREHEE
WRRIASE N RSB E & ©

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance of the trade receivables.
BMUNERZEEZRBNRENEEREEZEES
FE WA TR 2 TR HA {5 & 15 18 8 3 P T B9 (i 51 B ) i
RIS
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o Obtaining management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in
management’s assessment.

e NI EEEHRWUNRIERAEEHBEEGERNT G-
BHERBTFEMER - BER BN KRB I
RIFENEE (BREERAT A NMBARRAER QRS
RER) URERBABEENTIBHR B LR
EEEENA M ANEEEIGARNERSER

ZEER

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability of
receivables were supported by the available evidence.
ERbtEE BMEREEEMERHRERAGESE
BER AW EM RISt R A BRI SRR e



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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BREMMEB RESMBHRRAXK
ENEE-E

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS - continued

118

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Tien Sun Kit, Jack.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tien Sun Kit, Jack
Practising Certificate Number: P07364
Hong Kong, 27 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A 1 1 2t B HAth 2 1 A2 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE_"Z_——

FZR=1+—HIFE

2022 2021
== B &
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i 5 FHT TETT
Revenue U =5 8 154,823 114,086
Cost of sales iHE R A (100,589) (72,750)
Gross profit EF 54,234 41,336
Other revenue H itz 50 597
Other gain and loss, net H = R E518 0 38 10 - (102)
Provision of allowance for expected B REMEWRTIERIZES
credit losses on trade and other ZIEHAE EGERE R
receivables and deposits, net SEEE 5(b) (3,187) (2,409)
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE 20 (46,630) -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (29,600) (24,987)
Administrative expenses THREX (22,250) (16,524)
Loss from operations BEEEEE 11 (47,383) (2,089)
Finance costs MBER 12 (1,308) (1,338)
Loss before taxation PRI AIESIE (48,691) (3,427)
Taxation RIE 15 (2,246) (1,050)
Loss for the year TEERE (50,937) (4,477)
Other comprehensive income TEERHMZ2EILE
for the year
Items that may be reclassified HREEFEEMNT4E
subsequently to profit or loss: B zIEH
Exchange differences on translating of AEBINSEETE 2
foreign operations bE R = %8 7,872 15,490
Other comprehensive income TEEHMZ2EIE
for the year 7,872 15,490
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ZSFEERHE (B518) Uns44%E
for the year (43,065) 11,013

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A oy 15 2t B L Ath e 1 A 2 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.

2022 2021
—EZCHE B —%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FER FET
(Loss)/profit for the year BT ALEMWN
attributable to: EEE (55i8) mf -
Owners of the Company KATHEEA (50,999) (4,536)
Non-controlling interests JEER S 62 59
(50,937) (4,477)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income WM TALTE{EAEE
for the year attributable to: 2 (5518) WE4eEE .
Owners of the Company KATHEEA (43,216) 10,797
Non-controlling interests JEER S 151 216
(43,065) 11,013
Loss per share attributable to AR ARESREE .
owners of the Company:
— Basic and diluted —EAR K #E
(HK cents per share) (=AW 17 (9.10) (0.81)

integral part of these BEMMEAZEEEMBRRZ—2 D
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o 5 IR  3R

As at 31 March 2022 R=2=-—#=H=+—H

2022 2021
—E--f | —s-—%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5% F#Ex FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB RZE 18 38,380 39,444
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 18,871 20,660
Goodwill 5k 20 53,024 96,500
Deposit paid for property, plant and M E BB K
equipment REZ NS 22 920 471
110,365 157,075
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =& 21 14,651 9,587
Trade and other receivables and B 5 KREMEWIIER
deposits & 22 61,034 31,826
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBFER 24 5,768 25,099
81,453 66,512
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMELRIE 25 37,730 20,832
Lease liabilities HEaR 26 2,732 2,528
Amount due to a director BT —EERIE 27 3,500 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder e — % IRERIE 27 - 1,200
Tax payables FE(FiRIE 1,506 1,306
45,468 32,916
Net current assets MBEEEE 35,985 33,596
Total assets less current liabilities BEHAERRHEE 146,350 190,671
Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Lease liabilities HEaf 26 18,254 19,596
Net assets BEEEE 128,096 171,075

122 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o W Bk DL 2%

As at 31 March 2022 RZZ-_"F=H=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= BT —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E F#T FHET
Capital and reserves Bk E

Share capital fi& s 28 28,011 28,011
Reserves # & 98,168 141,298

Equity attributable to owners of RATEB ANEEER
the Company 126,179 169,309
Non-controlling interests JEER D 1,917 1,766
Total equity Rz 4E%R 128,096 171,075

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2022

and signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director

The accompanying notes form

consolidated financial statements.

Wong Hon Kit
Independent

Non-Executive Director

an integral part of these
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

LIS

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &

=—F——

xz —<——

FZR=1+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LG PN
Non-
Share Share Other  Share option  Contribution Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interest Total
2 iR RfbGE  RRERE R ES EEE RitiBH gt FERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER TEr TEr TERr TERr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 31 March 2020 W-BZEE-A=1+-8 2801 60,299 (2,878) 3,944 866,811 (10,897) 18,157 (806,662) 156,785 1,550 158,335
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE (B8) /57 - - - - - - - (4,536) (4,536) 59 (4477)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEEEMRENE
net of income tax NBFHER - - - - - 15,333 - - 15,333 157 15,490
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  AEE2EWE / (1) BE - - B - - 15,333 - (4536) 10,797 216 11,013
Share-based payment (Note 33) NRBER [ (H333) B B - 1727 - = - - 1727 = 1727
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTHTRE - - - - - 1319 (1.319) = = =
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZEZ-£=A=+-Ak
ZE--%MBE-A 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 5671 866,811 4436 19476 (812,517) 169,309 1,766 171,075
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE (55 /# - - - - - - - (50,999) (50,999) 62 (50,937)
Other comprehensive income for the year, - FEEHMBENE NIFHSE
net of income tax - - - - - 7,183 - - 1,783 89 18712
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEERENE/ (B 88
for the year - - - - - 7783 - (50,999) (43,216) 151 (43,065)
Share-based payment (Note 33) MRHAER % (1533) - - - 86 - - - - 86 = 86
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTEEMRE - - - - - - 1345 (1,345) - - -
Transfer of reserve upon the forfeited RERERNEEERE
of share options - - - (121) - - - 121 - - -
At 31 March 2022 W-E-_%=B=+-R 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 5,636 866,811 12,219 20,821 (864,740) 126,179 1917 128,096
Notes: MisE :
(a) Other reserve (a) Hihie
The other reserve represented the difference between the B EIs A AT FRIKERNBAT/MASZ
Company’s shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of ATBRHEEEKAAT R BARIELRE
subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s cost of acquisition of the 122 8 (e B A B 2 5 AS WU 48 1 Ui BE — RS Bt
subsidiaries under common control upon the reorganisation and BAT Z BRI ELE
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary’s equity interest.
(b) Share option reserve (b) BERR IR

The reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated D IEIERBERESIERINETS
BERAL (BEXRAAKEMBEAREMNZ
B R REES EE EH AR B R
TREERENERIGAHRENRTE

number of unexercised share options grants to eligible persons,
including any full-time and part-time employee, director,
consultant or advisor of the Company and its subsidiaries
recognised in accordance with the share option scheme.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia”) on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’
Republic of China (the “PRC"”), the subsidiaries of the Company
establishing in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up
capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the Board of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

OB BmaR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E--f | —s-—%
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M E FHET FHET
Operating activities SIEER
Loss before taxation PRI AR5 (48,691) (3,427)
Adjustments for: HEER
Interest income F 2 WA 9 (46) (92)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBEZFERAE 12 1,308 1,338
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREITE
equipment 18 9,451 7,180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 19 3,292 3,067
Provision of allowance for expected B 5 Kk EME W IE K
credit losses on trade and BEZRHAEE
other receivables and deposits, net BB EsIE B8 11 3,187 2,409
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERE 20 46,630 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BKER
equipment BB ZE1E 10 - 102
Gain on lease modification HEERZE 19 - (24)
Share-based payment UM AERZ HFR 11 86 1,727
Operating cash flows before EEAEZEHA
movements in working capital EERERE 15,217 12,280
Increase in inventories FHEEM (5,782) (1,475)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R HEHMEWRIE
receivables and deposits Koz & 120 (30,215) (3,105)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 kEMERIE
0 24,946 231
Cash generated from operations X*BEFERE 4,166 7,931
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHMPEEERER (2,046) (320)
Net cash generated from operating =iE¥FEFR1E
activities REFHE 2,120 7,611
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AR EemaER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

2022 2021
—E-= BT —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Ffd 5 FHT FHET
Investing activities BEER
Interest received BT L 9 46 92
Purchase of property, BEYE -BERZE
plant and equipment (6,979) (11,956)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BERREZFRF
plant and equipment IR - 29
Net cash used in investing activities RBEEIEFAREFEHE (6,933) (11,835)
Financing activities REER
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (4,019) (3,723)
(Repayment)/proceed of amount due (i) (BEEM—%
to a connected person RO AN T FIE (6,200) 1,000
(Repayment)/proceed of amounts due  ({&38) BEEBNEZK
to directors and a shareholder — R ERRIE (4,750) 7,050
Net cash (use in)/generated from BLE ¥ (FRA) FRi8
financing activities HE&3EE (14,969) 4,327
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERFEZEIER
cash equivalents (R EmiBEE (19,782) 103
Cash and cash equivalents at FMZRERFEEEHEE
the beginning of the year 25,099 24,801
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #MEE FE SR &i8) » 52 £ 451 195
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ[ERFEEEHEE
at the end of this year 5,768 25,099

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.

integral part of these
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

128

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The Company's
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
is Power King Investment Development Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the
Company shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands. The head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at Suite 1801, 18/F, Tower 1, The Gateway,
Harbour City, 25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
the most of the subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Amendment to HKFRS16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when

determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current
year has no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior year
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

New and amendment to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates?

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

HKAS 16 (Amendments)  Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use'

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018
-2020'

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Law
of Hong Kong).

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is set out below:
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial instruments and investment property
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as

net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Business combinations — continued

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Business combinations — continued

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value
at subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain

or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Goodwill - continued

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are

held for use in the service, or for administrative purposes.

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying mount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Property, plant and equipment - continued
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, using the straight-line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%
Medicine equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to

which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets — continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model

whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions

are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model

whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

SAMBRRENBEREA
B E—

EXGHHEER-&
EMIA-&

MBEE
MEEENDBERAENE

R 16 09 R B 1 P L1 B B
A :

e RENBUMEHNREREMNE
BEARNFENMBEE , &

s BHRRNIEEBHELERER
EEAXNETERHREELS
BAENMBEE-

HETIFRGNMBEERREATE
stARMMEE R (A FES ARt
2wk IFE

e RENBUBRREGHNRETREKRD
ENEBRAFTENMBEE , &

s BHBHBEMNEEBHELENERR
MNEERINEERHEREES
EHF B

BEREEERERAR
= 2021/22 §$E 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 05 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivable and deposits) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Definition of default — continued

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward-

looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar

credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and other receivables and deposits where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

REMBREREBREEREKX
BEIHR-&

EXGHHEER-&
EMIA-&

MBEE-&
HMEEENDBERAETE—E

BHEEBEENERER —&
ETEZRERENZHRREEHRE

DS REHENRABEEREENSF

HREEEMN  RERERSE -

MERNEMS  SEEED AR R
VST g

o EHNR
s BBHANME -RERTE, K
o HMEMEEFTAR (WA) -

BEIFCEEEEH®R  UBREFRS
R EEDREUEERRS M

MEBWARMBEENBIREETSE
BRIFMBEERTEERERRIN M
EZBERT FEBRADRMBZEERN
B A St o

FERZEEREAMESMIAZIREE
MR ASRM I AZ BERT
B 65 15 0 1 B 5 1 Uk AR 1A R H fth BB WK
BREEEBHEEBREDERRRE
PGk o

BEREEERERAR 157
2021/22 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 05 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

158

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured of

amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and
lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make

the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products

Revenue from the wholesale and distribution of
pharmaceutical and related products is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being at the point
the products are delivered to the customer and the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products — continued

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Provision of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy services
Revenue from the provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services which are recognised at a point in time

when the services are rendered.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Employee benefits — continued

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for
benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid. Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion

in the cost of an asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Share options granted

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is

expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve be transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Taxation - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the

conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the

related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under “other revenue”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Related Parties Transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Related Parties Transactions — continued

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Related Parties Transactions — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: — continued
Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner,

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or

obligations between related parties.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease - continued

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless

such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

— continued

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark and office that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured a cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Leases — continued

Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprises:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Lease liabilities — continued

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Lease liabilities — continued

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains one or more additional lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component. The associated non-
lease components are included in the respective lease

components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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182

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those

involving estimations, that the directors have made in the

process of applying the Group accounting policies and that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of use assets and goodwill

Plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation, if any.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU (or a group of CGUs) and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss
or further impairment loss may arise. For impairment
assessment, the Group has to exercise judgment and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
in the case of value in use, the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU

to which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of use assets and

goodwill- continued
and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts. Further, the
cash flows projections, growth rate and discount rate
are subject to greater uncertainties in the current year
due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic

may progress and evolve.

As at 31 March 2022,
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and

the carrying amounts of

goodwill subjected to impairment assessment were of
approximately HK$38,380,000, HK$18,871,000 and
HK$53,024,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$870,067,000) respectively (2021:
HK$39,444,000, HK$20,660,000 and HK$96,500,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$821,117,000)). Details of the impairment testing of
non-financial assets including goodwill are disclosed in
Note 20.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Detail of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 5(b).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade and other receivables and deposits are
set out in Note 5(b) and Note 22.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. EMTHR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) ERTHRERN
2022 2021
—g-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Financial assets MEEE
Measured at amortised cost S HR A 5T 2
— trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEWRIE
and deposits ks 58,591 30,023
— cash and cash equivalents —RERIREEEEE 5,768 25,099
64,359 55,122
Financial liabilities HiEaE
Measured at amortised cost R R AS 5T 2
— trade and other payables — B REMEMRIE 37,730 20,832
— amount due to a director —EH—%EENIE 3,500 7,050
— amount due to a shareholder — BT — % BRERIE - 1,200
— lease liabilities —fHEaE 20,986 22,124
62,216 51,206
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables and deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, amount due
to a shareholder, amounts due to directors, and lease
liabilities. The details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, trade and other receivables and deposits.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31 March 2022 and
2021.
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5.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

In respect of the deposits and other receivables, the
credit quality has been individual assessed by general
approach with reference to historical information
about the counterparties and financial position of the
counterparties. The Group recognised the allowance
for expected credit losses by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of deposits and other receivables,
discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and

considering the prevailing economic conditions.

In respect of the trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services. The Group's trade receivables
arise from wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
and related products and provision of hemodialysis

treatment and consultancy services.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

As at the end of the year, the top five debtors
accounted for approximately 71% (2021: 59%) of
the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of the
history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade receivables

disclosed in the below.

Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and

whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
business and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services business because these customers
consist of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 within lifetime ECL.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing — continued

5. SRMTA-4&
(b) HERAKETEAERKE &

S8 B B i B 5T 1h — 48

7 1 2B [ — B Ak B AR b — AR

Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TIRSEE HARME{E <3 -Bi g
% HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T F#T
At 31 March 2022 HRo-E__fF
=A=+—H
Current (not past due) BNHA (R#EHA) 5.7 30,163 1,728
1 to 90 days BH1EIOXR 6.3 16,575 1,046
91 to 180 days AHA91E 180K 34.7 7,513 2,609
Over 180 days past due  ZIHAFBIE180K 100.0 8,446 8,446
62,697 13,829
Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEEIEER HERREE BiaaE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 31 March 2021 RE——1F
=A=+—H
Current (not past due) BNHEA (RiEHA) 1.2 8,255 102
1 to 90 days AHA1ZEIOR 3.9 5,084 200
91 to 180 days BAHA91E 180K 54.2 1,888 1,023
Over 180 days past due  ZEAiEBE 180K 89.2 9,544 8,510
24,771 9,835
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. EMIRA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERAEEEEHERBE—E

policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE A B R BTk — &
- continued
Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing — continued 7D — fEIN A B AR e — 48
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on o 5t &5 8 2 Th & 72 FE UK 7R I8 T8 HA
historical observed default rates over the expected life AFERAFERRNBEEMEZELE
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking HNE MR HRMHBEZH A
information that is available without undue cost LA RSN EMEEREL
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by A MDA EIERE T
management to ensure relevant information about BEAFMASERIWHRENERSE
specific debtors is updated. HEEHeo
Trade receivables are written off when there is no BEZRWHRERSGEFER®EZER
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that =] B 4 £ o & I B A A WX B RV 45
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, REE EHPERE) GHBAREEAR
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a EETLEREE UK KREZ
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make BB EN S A FRIE
contractual payments for a period greater than 2 years
past due.
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade B EWRBEZEHREEHEE
receivables are presented as net impairment losses EREEENAENARERBE
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of B -HBWE Za B S 58
amounts previously written off are credited against the RMEEIEE AR

same line item.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group REEZZ-_—_F£=RB=+—H
recognised approximately HK$3,994,000 (2021: IFFE  NEBMRBEEHERKE
approximately HK$1,993,000) of allowance for SEWRIERTTEIEEBIEE
expected credit losses on trade receivables, based on %493,994,0008 5 (ZE_—%F !
the provision matrix. 491,993,000 7T) °
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5.

190

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Internal credit risk grading categories

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Written-off There is evidence indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr o 5 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the

maximum exposure to credit risk based on the

Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past

due information unless other information is available

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

5. *MITA-&

FE_F-RA-—+—HIEFE

(b) HBEABEEARREE-E

55 B B i (B 5T 1 — 48

RE B R R F R
TRITBEBEAEBZEEBRE
(PRIEF|MAMBEBEIREIRE N
Biel Rz HEMERS > FTAITS
FTEERBEFAHEN) EEH
ERFMAZHNEREEEERRE AR
RIEZZERZZEZ—F=H8
=+—BZFRBERDE

12-month
ECLs
12{8R Lifetime ECLs
RHEESR RUEMEEEE
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL loss rate
4:7) K&3 BHiEE
E&1 (BEEHE (E&HE) fi{tiE 4t BEEE  TUEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TER TER TER TER TERT TER
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z%=A=+-H
Trade receivables ERREkE - - - 62,697 62,697 13,829 2.1
Other receivables and deposits EftEUTEREE 2,483 13,576 - - 16,019 6,296 393
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEEE 5,768 - - - 5,768 - -
8211 13,576 - 62,697 84,484 20,125
12-month
ECLs
12188 Lifetime ECLs
BHEEER EHRMEEER
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL |oss rate
1) RE3 BfiiEE
K& (BEEAB ([E&HE) 7 At BEBE  THEEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TER TEn TER TEw TER TER
At 31 March 2021 RZ®8--£=A=+-A
Trade receivables BRENTE - - - 2,771 24,17 9,835 39.7
Other receivables and deposits AT EREE 9,153 13,037 - - 22,190 7,103 320
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEEE 25,099 - - - 25,099 - -
34,252 13,037 - 24,11 72,060 16,938
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5.

192

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
March 2022 and 2021 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

5.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEREEEERBE—E

S8 B B i B 5T 1h — 48

RIE_—_ —_E-—%=H
=E+—HREBERESFEZES
FEWMREREMGFFEENIAR
BiEEFEEBYEBRREZHIR

W
Other
receivables
Other and deposits
Trade receivables (Lifetime ECL
receivables and deposits non-credit
(Lifetime ECL) (12-month ECL) impaired) Total
HitEWFRIE  HtEWRER
B3 ERRIE kizg & (27N
(ZHATEHR (+=fERwEH =EBE-
ZE5H) Z8#518) BiEERE EaHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT FERT FTERT
At 31 March 2020 RZIZEZZHE=F=1+—H 7,842 1,870 4,817 14,529
Provision/(reversal) of loss FERPIBERRZEE
allowance recognised BEctR/ (BE) 34
in profit or loss during
the year, net 1,993 (637) 1,053 2,409
At 31 March 2021 and RIEZ-—&5=A=1+—H
1 April 2021 RZEZ—EMBF—H 9,835 1,233 5,870 16,938
Provision/(reversal) of loss EARBERRZERE
allowance recognised BEtiR/ (BE)
in profit or loss during ]
the year, net 3,994 (1,041) 234 3,187
At 31 March 2022 RIZZZH=A=+—H 13,829 192 6,104 20,125
Liquidity risk BN & & B b

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available

to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results

from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and

liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a

prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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policies — continued
Liquidity risk - continued
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

The following tables detail Group’s contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been

drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

financial liabilities which are the earliest dates of the

Group can be required to pay. The tables include both

interest and principal cash flows.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEREEEERBE—E

REE & AR &

TERFINEERMBEBRZEHN
HEABER ERBRBAEERER
HEBHZMBERERERES
MERHE TREEMNERTER
E i

o

flo

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
MEFH RERY FHRGE
BRAE R—FR BR—F MEME REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERn TERn TERn
At 31 March 2022 R-8__%=B=+-H
Trade and other payables BAREMERNTE - 37,730 - 37,730 37,730
Amount due to directors ERESHE 3,500 - 3,500 3,500
Lease liabilities HEaf 6.3 3,934 25,310 29,244 20,986
45,164 25,310 70,474 62,216
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
Mm#EFH BRERH FREREE
LiES R—&R BE—F MEMAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE_—&=HA=+—H
Trade and other payables B REMEMTRIE - 20,832 - 20,832 20,832
Amount due to directors EEZHIE - 7,050 - 7,050 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder M —aRERE - 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.8 3,788 27,487 31,275 22,124
32,870 27,487 60,357 51,206
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5.

194

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has no available
unutilised short and medium-term bank loan facilities
(2021: HK$ Nil).

Interest rate risk
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group did not
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed to

cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC and
most of the transactions were denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency
denominated of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct exposure
to foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as the functional currency of each entity of

the Group.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

B¥ERE
EXKRBEXZACHIEER
BEMIFUZBERZINELEES
& AgEEIERE -

FEBTERFREEXEF AKX
AR ZUARESE - 5ME B R
REUNESHEZBERZ BE
RBEE-BRABIBERZ B
ERBBEZFAEEBHEEAERS
BREZESHEER  FitxEE
AR ERERINE R

AEERFRITEEAARMIIMNER
ZEBEERERHNINEHHER-
FEBRBEZEVEREIIERRE I
ENETERETRHPEAING
JERLB
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5.

196

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)  The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.qg.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6. BZXEMKEE—&
The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in FEFEERER UREIAEERNRZE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BRENRGEREESE RNEBE®L
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the BRERANTE  AFHATRRAK
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group Bl o MIREMM > AEBENERBREK
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting Al fe 4 o
period.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, amount AEBNEAEBOEEE BHES
due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and lease FE-EBN—2REFREBREESE
liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable RERPRETEEEEUREATEE A
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital FEh#mE (BREEETRAR R
and reserves.
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHAT TET
Debt (note (a)) &% (MizE(a)) 24,486 36,574
Cash and cash equivalents HeKRFE+EEER (5,768) (25,099)
Net debt (L 18,718 11,475
Equity (note (b)) #E % (BEsE(b)) 126,179 169,309
Gearing ratio BEAMRJILXR 0.15 0.07

notes:

(@) Debts represented by amount due to a connected person,
amount due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and
lease liabilities.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

Fe5E -

(a) EHEEN—RBEALZRE BN
EFENE BN —2REREREE
EO

(b) HZBEXABEAEABLNMEER
I R f o
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT 7.

Information reported internally to the chief operating

EENE

MEIBEERREAN2RAFERS
RkiTZIERRZER  BEERFH
RS ZERARBER -FEE
EBAMEZSESE BN PEZ(a)E
ot 3% R D 8H 55 0 Ke(b) I R IE A A R
REHRGEEE RSB EEE

decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised
into two operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale

and distribution business, and (b) hemodialysis treatment

and consultancy service business in the PRC. These divisions WREDEEN 2B
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment

information.

Segment revenue and results SEWEKRES

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BE_E__F=-A=+—HLEE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Consolidated
miRER
BEotER BB B L
DEHEFRE IRIFEFRE =25
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT F#ERT F#ET
Revenue I &%
Revenue from external KEINBER Z W
customers 51,183 103,640 154,823
Results Ef
Segment results DHEES 7 (38,014) (38,007)
Unallocated corporate income RO ZEHEIMAK
and expenses, net L R EE (9,376)
Loss from operations EiEEEEE (47,383)
Finance costs &R (1,308)
Loss before taxation PRI ATESIE (48,691)
Taxation TR (2,246)
Loss for the year REERE (50,937)
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. EERE-&

Segment revenue and results — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2021

DHEWERESE—E
BE_E_ —H=BA=+—HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
MR B
Emt R BB B
DEHER RIS e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Revenue I &%
Revenue from external KEINBER Z W E
customers 58,771 55,315 114,086
Results Ef
Segment results DEEEER 156 7,947 8,103
Unallocated corporate income RO HLZ UK A K
and expenses, net o BEE (10,192)
Loss from operations EIEEREE (2,089)
Finance costs &R (1,338)
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18 (3,427)
Taxation fRiE (1,050)
Loss for the year KEERE (4,477)
BEEEEZERERAR 199
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FET—HF-H-+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2022

7. EERE-&
NERERAE

BE_ES__F-A=+—HLEE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and

wholesale and consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
miRER
BEoER AEREH
DEHEFRE RIEERE =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET F#ET F#ET
Consolidated statement of 4 &I AR
financial position
Assets B5E
Segment assets DEEE 23,701 112,610 136,311
Goodwill e - 53,024 53,024
Unallocated corporate assets ~ KROBMZIEEEE 2,483
Consolidated total assets GEBEEME 191,818
Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities DEAE 8,039 49,018 57,057
Amount due to a director R —%EEHIE 3,500
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO ZzEE&E 3,165
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEMEEE 63,722
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7. EERE-IR
NERERAGE-&
HE-S-—F=A=+—HILEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis

treatment and

consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
R B
BRI ER AR E
DIHETE IRFEEFE aa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
Consolidated statement of 4 &BFEIKRER
financial position
Assets 5E
Segment assets DEEE 35,985 87,479 123,464
Goodwill mE - 96,500 96,500
Unallocated corporate assets KOz XEEE 3,623
Consolidated total assets EEEHSE 223,587
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE 7,242 26,113 33,355
Amount due to a director B —%EEHRE 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder — FE{dt—% fE B ZhI1E 1,200
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROz EX£EE 10,907
Consolidated total liabilities e BEMEEE 52,512
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Other segment assets and liabilities

FET—HF-H-+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

7.

EENE-&
HthyEEERAR
F£=A=+—HILEE

BE—_T_-_

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
m&ER
BaltER AEREN
DIHER PR %R xAE Foae]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TAR TERT TART
Other information HitnE
Capital expenditure (note) BEARER (M) 610 7,434 9 8,053
Depreciation neE 685 10,649 1,409 12,743
Provision of allowance for expected &7 R E thEWFIERK
credit losses on trade and other REZRBEEHER
receivables and deposits, net Hetie 28 173 3,014 - 3,187
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 20) 2R {ERSE (i5£20) - 46,630 - 46,630
Finance costs MBER 40 1,199 69 1,308
note: B 5E :

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets during the year.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment assets and liabilities — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2021

7.

EENE IR
HthrHFEERAE-&
BE_T_—F=-A=+—HLFE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
MARE
EoHtER VbV dt
DIHER PRES % b iy o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT TAT TAT
Other information HitE
Capital expenditure (note) BARRY (M) 167 9,540 - 9,707
Depreciation neE 800 8,040 1,407 10,247
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment B8 102 - - 102
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for ~ B REMEWRER
expected credit losses on trade and EéZﬁﬁﬂf”EﬂE
other receivables and deposits, net fastie / (&)
5%%5 (210) 2,619 = 2,409
Finance costs MBER 37 1,185 116 1,338

note:

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets during the year.

B 5E ©

BEXRARBERERFEZYE BE KRR
BUREREEE-
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204

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Other segment assets and liabilities — continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit or loss generated
by each segment without allocation of finance costs and
taxation. Unallocated corporate expenses mainly include
directors’ remuneration and other central administration
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include office equipment,
certain right-of-use asset and cash and cash equivalent
of the central administration companies and certain
deposits and other receivables. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 20.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than, amount due to directors, amount due to a
shareholder, certain lease liabilities and certain other
payables and accrual expenses of certain administrative

costs.
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas—pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC and

administrative activity operates in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

HENE-&
WEEY

FEERMEETEZELE

B-EREE

BERE ML R0 HER RMBRERERE
REARBEBREIEBEEEERR

FEo

FEEZREEHRERFEZINGE

Eo

UTRBEEMBEMED T ZIFREE

EZREEDF:

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

EREEEZIRAE
2022 2021
—E-C T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Hong Kong 55 1,428 2,828
PRC A ] 108,937 154,247
110,365 157,075
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. EESE-E
Information about major customers EREEERZEH
Revenue from customers over 10% of the Group's total EEREBAKZBBI10%Z2EEKRGE
revenue are as follows: * <
2022 2021
—g-- -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Customer A EFRA 17,191 18,282
Customer B ZFB N/A*
FERmR* 15,259
Customer A and customer B are both relating to ERAREPRBHHEERMBERDHER
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business. Ao
*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over * MEERmRIEGAER -T2
10% of the total revenue of the Group in 2022. FHUWFERI10%MU Eo
8. REVENUE 8. W=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: FRAERRZSAUOT :
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Revenue from contracts with customers RE—IFEEREF

recognised at a point in time: =r 0l G
Wholesale and distribution of BEORERERMERDHE

pharmaceutical and related products 51,183 58,771
Provision of hemodialysis treatment and R MR E N R R KA AR

consultancy services 103,640 55,315

154,823 114,086

All revenue contracts are for one year or less. As permitted FREWEGHNMRIIR—FHUT &
by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price ERMBREENBISRNTITERES
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. AR TEKRBENEERBITENN

R 7B
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9. OTHER REVENUE

H fth U &

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Interest income A EUWA 46 92
Government subsidies (Note) B #E B (i sE) - 486
Sundry income HIEIWA 4 19
50 597

Note: B 5% -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the purpose of which is to provide financial support to
enterprises and to retain their employees who would otherwise
be made redundant. Under the terms of the Employment Support
Scheme, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the
subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to its
employees. During the year ended 31 March 2022, no such funding
support was received.

10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS, NET

RBE_Z_—F=—A=+—HLEFE &
EEMNFAFHERFNITHRERNRILZ
MREILEI BB ZFEMENEREE
REMBZE URBAIESRENNES
R TRFL 2 StBIRR > A& B EH B AAR
FRHE LRAAEMREARXTESR
HE RBEE_S-__£=B=+—HLHE
B BEREEEES< -

10. H itz B 548 > 7F 88

2022 2021
—E-C BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BERSEZEIR
plant and equipment - (102)
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11. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 1. EEEBEHE
The Group's loss for the year from operations is arrived at FR AEESEEBZEEBEDKNR
after charging: TIEB®BER
2022 2021
- B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Staff costs: BTEHA:
Employee benefits expense (including EBEREFRE

directors’ emoluments (Note 13)): (BIEESME (MizE13)) :

Salaries and allowances & RERY 18,012 17,828

Retirement scheme contributions BIAEETEIHR 1,149 854

Share-based payment (Note 33) MR AERZ AR (HzE33) 86 1,727

19,247 20,409
Other items: Hithgg :
Depreciation of property, plant and W2 BB KRBT E (5E18)

equipment (Note 18) 9,451 7,180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE (fsE19)

(Note 19) 3,292 3,067
Auditors’ remuneration S EM AN <&

— audit services —BIZRE 757 744
Cost of inventories sold EEFEERAE 94,002 67,173
Provision of allowance for expected credit EHKREMEWRRERIZS

losses on trade and other receivables and ~ ZFEHAE B IEEHTR

deposits, net SR 3,187 2,409
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 20) EEREEE (fE20) 46,630 -
Expenses relating to short-term lease B HARE Bz 358 316
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12. HHEH
2022 2021
—EZF B —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHAT TET
Interest on: MTEBEZFE
— Lease liabilities —fHEaE 1,308 1,338
13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEHM
Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies RiE EHRAREBAREEA » IRAEK
Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by FEERZZERATRREHBEZAFER
the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of REVEBZFHMABZEWT :
the Company during the reporting period are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-— BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Fees wE 415 360
Other emoluments: HuEl = -
— Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind  —#& SRR EWHIE 1,547 1,782
— Retirement scheme contributions —RIRET B R 29 36
— Share-based payment —URMAERZ R - 561
Total “ast 1,991 2,739
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

13. ES M —48
AATREENBE PRI FH BN

during the reporting period are as follows:

T

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Total
fe 2R
g BNHE Bk BN ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THER
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-B-C
ZB=+-RALEE
Executive directors: HiTEE .
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Wang Jia Junfe & - 1,166 18 1,184
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (a)) SRELL (fi5H0) - 381 1 392
Non-executive director: FHITEE .
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Note (b)) AHERE (b)) 55 - - 55
Independent non-executive directors: BLHRTEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEREE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ho Man 8% 120 - - 120
415 1,547 29 1,991
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions payment Total
HE RER DURRAR 2 2B
e BYRAE RAGEIHRR PANEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER THER THER THR
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HECZ--F
=ZB=+—HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Wang Jia Junft 4 - 1,032 18 264 1,314
Ms. Yung Ka Lai PEERT = 750 18 264 1,032
Independent non-executive directors: BUFRTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEHLE 120 - - 11 131
Dr. Liu Yongping B TEL 120 - - 11 131
Mr. Ho Man A8%kE 120 - - 1 131
360 1,782 36 561 2,739
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE_—ZE__F=H=+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

during the reporting period are as follows: — continued
Notes:

(@ Ms. Yung Ka Lai resigned as the executive director of the
Company on 15 October 2021.

(b)  Dr. Xiao Zhixin was appointed as non-executive director on 15
October 2021.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, none of
the directors and chief executive officer of the Company

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments have been paid to the directors and chief
executive officer of the Company as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation.

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest
paid employee after considering the Group's operational
and financial performance during the years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021.

13. EFHM B

ARBRESNREAB ZHMEFE BN
—F : _ng

B 5E ©

(@) S=EwtTtR_-_TE-_—=®+A+EHH
BEXRQTZHTES -

by WHEBER-_Z_—F+H+EHH
EEERFRITES-

BE_ZT__FR-_FT-_—%5=ZHA
=+—HLEFEE - BELATDERERE
ETHABRRHAREREETAME -

BE-_FT_-__FR-FT=-—%=R8
Z+—HLEEE FARLEERAEER
FETHRASMFHM > LUFRRKSI0
BAEEINMBEROER > HEAH

&

Rt kA EBBE_S-__KR_F
T F=RA=1+—HLEEZEERY
BRAB EE0 14 RsHEEME
TSR REURTEAL o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
one (2021: two) director and the details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The details of
the emoluments of the remaining four (2021: three) highest
paid individuals who are neither director nor chief executive

officer of the Company are as follows:

14.

haEREHES
FRELBREHESRE—% (2%
——F I WR) B HMEERN L
SCHisE13 8 R (C B —4F 1 =4)
BEHES (RELFEADESNIE
TBTHAR ZHEHBENT :

2022 2021

—E-C B4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FExT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMBE 2,090 1,731
Retirement scheme contributions RONEFETEIHERR 47 36
Share-based payment UM AERZ HFR - 28
2,137 1,795

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following band is as follows:

WIFRAABTEFMEFM T FUTH
BzRe#HEEZABNT

2022 2021
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z%1,000,000% 7T 4 3

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management
or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15. TAXATION

15. 118

2022 2021
—S_-C T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax: ENHERFRIE ©
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEEEMER 2,246 1,050

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onward to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") CIT provision is made on
the estimated assessable profits of entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC and is calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering
the available tax benefits from refunds and allowances. The
general PRC CIT rate is 25% during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021 except for those as discussed below:

FEBEAMEEBRNEAGMEREE
PREBIAEEPTEE BRI ZEF > #
BEREERMAER

LA 2 SRR )B4 R o
BFREERZRTRE RELREL
H RBREAHE.

REFEEEMBREZ BZTTNE
—A—HE REEPERINAEE
TR \EEFERNNEN M HIE
SMRERBIIR S HUI0% M FEINAAGIR -
HREEEBEAMRIEFAEZSETRER
BIEL25%RENKREE  REHS%H
BERX - ARFTEETFRENMEL
A A —FEEEBEMA IR EER
ABEEFA BEEERS%HNEER
RYMRIFE - BN A EE B RE = HI B
O TR ERNRRE BAKRATRERTR
M REBOEREZHR R ERZFEF
iz ERERFHIEER AR

FEGERESR (TREMEBRI) DA
BRBEDES R UESNRRLZE
MERKEER  REAEERPEG
Ak 3z B9 B AE A (& 5T FE SR AR B A E W Xt
RETEERAREHE - BES =
ER-_E_—F=ZB=+—HIEE"
—RAPRBE T ERSRNESR25%  ET
X Ffr st am & RS
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15.

214

TAXATION - continued

The Ministry of Finance (“MOF"”) and State Administration
of Taxation (“SAT”) on 17 January 2019 jointly issued Cai
Shui 2019 No. 13. This clarified that from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021, eligible small enterprises whose
RMB1,000,000 of annual taxable income is eligible for a
75% reduction on a rate of 20% (i.e., effective rate is 5%)
and the income between RMB1,000,000 and RMB3,000,000
is eligible for 50% reduction on a rate of 20% (i.e. effective
rate is 10%). On 14 March 2022, MOF and SAT further
jointly issued Cai Shui 2022 No. 13, which clarified that
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, eligible small
enterprises whose income between RMB1,000,000 and
RMB3,000,000 is eligible for 75% reduction on a rate of
20% (i.e. effective rate is 5%).

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated

assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax, Cayman Islands
and BVI Income Tax has been made, as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits in these jurisdictions during
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BABER (TR EB)) REIRIRFHEAER (TH
XMBER) R_E—-hLFE—A+tH
Bt S ENSE R FR201958 1358 X1 o s XU
REE_E—NE—B—HE_Z”-_—
E+ZHA=+—H FERMRKAS
AR¥1,000,0007cM S BB
AIE20% IR ERME75% (BIBHRRE
#5%) RBANF AK¥1,000,0007T
Z AR 3,000,000t & ER/NE B
2> A[#E20% MM ERE50% (B1E K
MEA10%) R_TE-__F=H+M@
B MEBRERREEFE—PHSE
ENZSBA1R2022 51395 > BAFE R —
E_-FE—B—HEZEZZH+ZAH
=+—H WANTF AE1,000,0007T
= AR 3,000,000t & & &/ B B
£ A R20% IR TR R75% (BNE R
EAB5%) o
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MEMEREMNE2,000,000%8 T &
I18.25% ¥ R E#7 » mMiBiE2,000,000
BT ZHEANRLLI6.5%NMEBHBR - T
HEFESRMBREESHNERSENE
G AER 16 5%BMBR—IREHIR -
I A ERERBERN MG ERRERN
B2,000,000/8753%8.25% st EE A FIE
> M#8iE2,000,0008 T A {4 5t FERR TR
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

15. TAXATION - continued

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows:

15. *ﬁlﬁ nE

fER AR B R B E A B PR MR 2%
EREABERRRIRABIRZAER
AXERBERRIAEZRERSZZH
BREDE ¢

2022 2021
—E-C T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT TFAET
Loss before taxation PRI ATES I8 (48,691) (3,427)
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated IREBIEHERMREEEEE 2
at the rates applicable to profits in the tax EFIBBERMRRAERIRA
jurisdiction concerned A Y &R E (11,287) 64
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEZFRIANRE X E
purposes - (80)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RO REZNRE T E
tax purposes 14,878 3,756
Tax effect of withholding tax on dividend  RREZIRHFENRREEZE
distribution 1,091 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIEDHWRMIEBEENREZE 60 665
Effect of the preferential income tax rates HRABEANEREZEMEREMN
for domestic entities o (2,496) (3,135)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses & F ST Al R FE 5T EI'J#EIE
previously not recognised BEENRETE - (220)
Taxation R 2,246 1,050

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$13,441,000 (2021: HK$16,214,000)
available for offset against future profits and amount of
HK$13,441,000 will fully expire in 2026. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the HK$13,441,000
(2021: HK$16,214,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At the end of the reporting period, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of a subsidiary for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$4,199,000 (2021: HK$4,644,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

#%Eiﬁﬂsk » NE[13,441,000%8 7T
—ET - —4F:16,214,00085T) 2k
BARNEEETBEREHERR G K
13,441,000 B TR ZEZRE2E
EIHA o B A SR 2R i A 2R TR B A Bl A 0 B
W FERFE13,441,0008 T (ZEZ—%F ©
16,214,000/ 70) RIEERIBEE E ©
REIEHAR > BRI B AT KD E R
MABRNELEREEGENEREL
UEREL 244 199,000 T (CE-—4F
4,644,000/ 70) cHRAEBEENE
IR E AR MAMTRE
XA B] B 2R A AE A & 13 [B] » 0o 7
ZEERERERIEA G
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16.

17.

216

DIVIDENDS 16.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17.

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of the basic loss per share are based
on loss attributable to the owners of the Company and
the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue

during the year as follows:

Bz 2
KRBEFFEBRAVHE_ZT _—
ZA=+—HLEEFEENEARE (ZF
——Fime

TarER AEIESRESE

(a) EirEBFEGIE
FRBREFGENDREAQF
BEAEABGEGERRMNERSE %
TEBEREESAE FBEUT:

Loss for the year TEERE
2022 2021
—EZCHF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to KATHEE NEEEFERE
owners of the Company (50,999) (4,536)
Number of shares ;ah k4=
2022 2021

—BCHF B —F

Weighted average number of ordinary fN#EEERER

shares

(b) Diluted loss per share
For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not include
the Company’s outstanding share options because the
effect were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the diluted loss per
share of the Company is the same as the basic loss per

share.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—E__F=H=+—RHI-FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. V¥ -BEREHE

Leasehold Office Medicine Motor Construction
improvement equipment equipment vehicle in progress Total
HENERE MAZRME BRERE AE TEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TET TAR TAT
Cost %
At 31 March 2020 R-E-Z4=R=+-A 17,236 9,638 17,128 580 6,424 51,006
Additions HE 687 3218 5,304 80 122 9,411
Disposals HE - - - (410) - (410)
Transfer o 3223 - - - (3,223) -
Exchange realignment ERAE 1763 927 2,141 76 274 5,181
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZIBZ-&E=ZA=+-HEK
ZEZ-EMA-H 22,909 13,783 24,573 326 3,597 65,188
Additions HE - 245 4,794 26 2,295 7,360
Disposal HE = = - (150) = (150)
Transfer =4 371 - - - 371) =
Exchange realignment ERAE 961 554 649 26 183 2373
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZ£=A=+-H 24,241 14,582 30,016 228 5,704 74771
Accumulated depreciation 2iHirE
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZ£=A=+-H 2,330 5,849 8,358 150 - 16,687
Charge for the year FREME 2,615 690 3,776 99 = 7,180
Written back on disposals A E R ] - - - (279) - (279)
Exchange realignment ERHEZE 306 515 1,289 46 = 2,156
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZB--%=A=+-Hk
—SZ-EMmA-H 5,251 7,054 13,423 16 - 25,744
Charge for the year FREMR 3,737 1510 4,052 152 - 9,451
Written back on disposals R E R[] - - - (150) - (150)
Exchange realignment EREZ 292 31 728 15 - 1,346
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZ#=B=+-H 9,280 8,875 18,203 33 - 36,391
Net book value IREFE
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z#=B=+-H 14,961 5,707 11,813 195 5,704 38,380
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-%=A=+-H 17,658 6,729 11,150 310 3,597 39,444
BEEEZERERAT 217
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19.

218

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FHEEE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$'000
FAET
Cost 0%
At 31 March 2020 A —E-ETFE=H=+—H 24,819
Additions RE 296
Lease modification (Note) HEER (M) (1,262)
Exchange realignment BE 52 5 22 1,798
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 AR —F=BA=+—HK
T —FMB—H 25,651
Additions RE 693
Elimination 1 B (238)
Exchange realignment [E R EE 944
At 31 March 2022 RIEZZHF=RB=+—H 27,050
Accumulated depreciation HEHinE
At 31 March 2020 A _ETE=H=+—H 2,017
Charge provided for the year FREEHEBINR 3,067
Lease modification (Note) HEEN (M) (317)
Exchange realignment BE 2 A E 224
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 A—E_—F=BA=+—HK
“E-—HFMWABE—H 4,991
Charge provided for the year FREEHEBINR 3,292
Elimination 1 25 (238)
Exchange realignment PE RS E 134
At 31 March 2022 W2 Z-HF=H=+—H 8,179
Net book value IREEE
At 31 March 2022 W-ZE--£=HA=+—H 18,871
At 31 March 2021 A B —F=H=+—H 20,660
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, as requested by the fizk: BEZSE-—F=A=+—HLHF

owner and after negotiated and agreed by both parties, two
properties lease were in advance without compensation. As at
the date of termination, the carrying amount of right of use
assets and lease liabilities were approximately HK$945,000
and HK$969,000 respectively and the gain on lease

E BEIER RESHERE®E
MEMEHEERANRL BRER
fE -RELEEH FRAEEERA
EREZREED R A%945,000%
765%969,0008 7t > M EE Az 4

modification of approximately HK$24,000 was recognised in 24,0008 TR FRRIEE P o

profit or loss during the year.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A o3 W 5 i 2R PR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE_—ZE__F=H=+—HItFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$20,986,000 (2021:
HK$22,124,000) are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$18,871,000 (2021:
HK$20,660,000) as at 31 March 2022. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases for the year ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

During the current year, the Group leases properties for its
operations. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

19. FRKEE—&

RZE-_-_HF=H=+—H H®:2H
EB&E#420,986,0008 T (ZE=-—
£ :22,124,000487T) KAERFERE
BHE#X18,871,0008T (ZE-—% .

20,660,0007%87T) - HEHZERHE AR
ANEEEEPRIRFRRERINREMNE
A2k -HEBERTRIEGRIKR

BHE_Z__FR-ZZE-_—%F%=H8
=t+—BHLEFEZHEREMLELEF
I‘;%Z@Jﬁ\,'rniﬁﬁ/mz?i°

RAEFE - AEEHEMENSEHE
BoHERMLRERNEEMZE  FIE
ERMRIFEGZEFTRBEEREKXR -EE
HE R TR A EH A R R By AN &R
EEAEMNZESR LEE A BERIT
G ZHAR -

GOODWILL 20. &
2022 2021
—EZCHF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Cost (5%
At 1 April REABE—H 917,617 907,336
Exchange realignment PE 52 5R 2 5,474 10,281
At 31 March W=B=+—H 923,091 917,617
Accumulated impairment losses REtiFERE
At 1 April RHA—H 821,117 818,326
Impairment loss recognised during the year £R BRI ERE 46,630 =
Exchange realignment BE 52 A B 2,320 2,791
At 31 March R=A=+—H 870,067 821,117
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March R=A=+—H 53,024 96,500

BEREEZERERAR 219
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20.

220

GOODW.ILL - continued
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment loss) as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are

allocated as follows:

20. HE-&

RoE- R E-_—F=H=+—
H @& ZREE 0RRTRESE)
DEWT :

2022 2021
—g-- -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Mingxi County Trading Company Limited* BERBR{EABEZERAT
("Mingxi”) and its subsidiaries (TERZ)) REWB AT
— provision of hemodialysis treatment and ~ —3iR MR BEfABEKR
consultancy services B ARTS 53,024 96,500

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGU were determined by
the directors with the reference to professional valuation
report issued by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers which

were based on value in use calculations.

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment
(including allocation of corporate assets) and right-of-
use assets (including allocation of corporate assets) that
generate cash flows together with the related goodwill
are also included in the respective CGU for the purpose of

impairment assessment.

& English translations of official Chinese names are for
identification purpose only.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period (2021: 5-year),
and pre-tax discount rate of 11.90% (2021: 11.76%).
The cash flows beyond the 5-year period (2021: 5-year)
are extrapolated using a zero terminal growth rate (2021:
zero%). This growth rate is based on a very prudence
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth

rate for the relevant industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
average gross margin of 46.9% (2021: 57.4%) and the
average net profit margin of 11.8% (2021: 14.1%), such
estimation is based on the CGU’'s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Based on the assessment of the recoverable amount of CGU
of approximately HK$124,901,000 (2021: HK$177,307,000)
which the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount and impairment loss of goodwill of
approximately HK$46,630,000 (202 1:HK$Nil) was recognised
during the years ended 31 March 2022. The impairment of

goodwill was mainly due to the following events:

(1) Due to the PRC Governments stringent precautionary
measures, including additional testing requirement
for the Groups patients and lockdown policy in order
to combat COVID 19 pandemic in the first quarter of
2022, the operating costs of the Group is expected
to be increased and the lock down policy is expected
to affect the prospect of the Groups hemodialysis
treatment business resulting in the negative impact on

the profit thereof;

20 ﬁ nE

EaEEzREEEEARERNS
—&

LBz A ElEERIEERAEENE
FEBEE ZAEAEZFERREEERE
BMZAFEHRR (CE—F 152
ﬁﬂﬂzﬁ%%%ziﬁéiﬁ%ﬁﬂu&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RE11.90% (ZTEZ—F 1 11.76%) #&
THE-REFHECEZ—F 15F)
BHNEESREFRASKEBEERE (2T
T HF ITHERR)EEILEREDR
iR E G E Y TR A E B B R A RE
TEZREFHERE.

SHERAEENEMTERKERER
A/ RENGE AR BIETHEERNE
46.9% (ZZEZ—% :57.4%) RFHF
FEEI118% (ZEZ—F:14.1%) >
MAEMGNRRAEELEEUNAT
REREEEETHSEENERME
E-REBEHRASELBEUNTKRE S
%E49124,901,0008 T (ZEZ—% .
177,307,000%7T) FREZ 5Tt > IRE &
SEMUNREEBRHEAIKESEE I
RBEEZ-__F=ZA=+—HLEE

S0 E R EE5184946,630,0008 7T (=
E—F TExT) HEBREDNEEH
RIATEHMEK:

(1) HRAPEBMAHRERT &SN TER
i SIEHAEEBEETEI
BANERUARBME_S -
FHE—FECOVID-19%& 1B M EX
REHBER > Rt AN EBALE R
AEEMEEAHEB R E
AEEMBRBEMAREBLNAS
KMmHEMBELEEEREE;
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20. GOODWILL - continued
Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

222

- continued

2)

The business plan for the opening Maoming Centre
was delayed due to the strong objection of the
neighbourhood villagers where Maoming Centre
located at. Despite the Group’s repeated lobbying for
the opening of Maoming Centre, the neighbourhood
villagers still vigorously objected to the opening of
Maoming Centre in the vicinity where they lived. In
April 2022, certain neighbourhood villagers officially
issue a notice to instigate all other villagers to raise
their collectively objection. As a result, the Directors
considered the business plan of Maoming Centre
would be substantially delayed;

Due to the fact that the joint venture partner of
Xianyou Centre failed to pay in full the Group its
attributable accumulated profit since April 2018, the
Group decided to pursue legal proceedings against
Xianyou Boai Hospital® (fll## {2 8&px), the joint
venture partner in January 2022 and the operation of
Xianyou Centre was halted. Due to the dispute with
the joint venture partner, the operation of Xianyou
Centre was halted temporarily; and

Huidong Centre started trial run in the last quarter of
2019. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the government
of PRC implemented stringent precautionary measures
which increased the operating cost of Huidong Centre.
Further Huidong Centre encountered delay in obtaining
the specialised licence under National Medical
Insurance Drug List for its official normal operation
of the hemodialysis treatment service. According to
the original trial run plan, the trial run operation of
Huidong Centre was finished in the first quarter of
2021 and would commence formal operation after
obtaining the specialised license. However, after the
completion of trial run and up to the date hereof,
Huidong Centre is still pending obtaining of the formal
specialised license. This causes certain delay in the
business plan in Huidong Centre.

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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20. BE-&
BEHERSESEMRENR

-8

(2)

HAREERONEEFEREEZS
ROV E 3t B AN R B9 58 1 i
MEERE - BERNEEBARBRD
HREFEETTZRER EAEN
Rh Ao RS E M E E8 M
FRAZRRARL-RITEZZFMN
B HoBAENRERZHBE
FEMABHMNRERBIREER
A EFGRARGPRONER
SRR ARIEE ;

HRWEROHNEEBHERAE

BEXNEZZ—/\FENAEESR
BRAEBP R EF > NERR
ER_E__F—HBH&EEH
il 325 18 2 B8 B 12 B JE R afF 5 e AL
BRLMDMELESE AREEEBHY
B A% (L BER DB B E R =
Ik &

BERFLRZZB-AFENFE
A EE T - B COVID-19% 15
PEBAER T EAENTEHEE
WmEmT BRPONEZ A
5 BRPALEES(ARBR
EmBEHR)RENEEFAE E
NEE—RMRENSERSES
HEBIER - RIBRAETFE
BRALDHABER_FT_—F
F—FETH LEESEENA
BERMMENXNESZ - 2AM KA E
TERBEREESHRSAH BR
FOMAREREXNEEFAE-
EERBERPONEHEHIR
—REIER



20. GOODWILL - continued 20.

21.
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Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

If the pre-tax discount rate was change to 12.90%,
while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of the CGU would be reduced to approximately
HK$113,453,000 and impairment of goodwill of
approximately HK$57,877,000 would be recognised.

INVENTORIES 21.

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

BE -5
BEEEZzZREEEEMRERNR
— &

H BRI AT R IR B 512.90% » M E M S

HERFAE AREESEMZAKE

SEER R E49113,453,0008 7T > A
B EA57,877,000/8 T ©

=8
RESHBRRRZFEEE

2022 2021
- S —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Finished goods SR 14,651 9,587

BEREEERERAR
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

224

22. B REMBUWRIERES

DEPOSITS
2022 2021
—E-C T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET
Non-current assets: ERBEE !
Deposits paid for property, plant and ME--BERZBE N
equipment (note (a)) #& (Misx@) 90 471
Current assets: MBEE
Trade receivables B S EWEIE 62,697 24,771
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  ifl : B R EWRIEZ
on trade receivables TRHEAE G 1E#E (13,829) (9,835)
48,868 14,936
Prepayments FA{IFRIE 2,443 1,803
Other receivables and deposits paid HEtEWHRIEREMiES
(note (b)) (B 5% (b)) 16,019 22,190
67,330 38,929
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 8 : EfthEWHIBZ FEHAEE
on other receivables BE1EE S (6,296) (7,103)
61,034 31,826

note:

The balance represent deposits paid for machinery and
equipment for provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services.

Included in the Group's deposits paid were the refundable
security deposit to Zhuhai Jinlong Hospital Company
Limited* Bk NEEBPEERAE), for the operation and
management of the hemodialysis centre in the hospital for a
term of 10 years of approximately RMB11,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$13,576,000 (2021: HK$12,025,000)). For more details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement date 13 March
2020.

English translations of official Chinese names are for
identification purpose only.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable from 30 to 90 days
(2021: 30 to 90 days) for pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business and 5 to 365 days (2021: 5 to 365
days) for hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business respectively of issuance of invoices. The ageing
analysis of the gross amount of trade receivables based on

the invoices date is as follows:

22. B REMBWRIERES

—&

] 8% S it 3% e 9 8 U K IR B AR
B R BHRTE EH T PR RIER
NEERAET BE—REDNNEESR
HHEE30FEI0H (Z2EZ—4F : 308
90R) (BEm#ttEE Kk D #HERE) K5E365H
(ZZE=——%& :5%365H0) (IMRKREHRA
BREHRBEER) RO REZEAH
B E 5 R IEEEER R DA ¢

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—fF

HK$"000 HK$'000

FAT FHET

Within 90 days 90H A 32,048 13,340
91 to 180 days 91E180H 15,051 1,888
181 to 365 days 181E365H 7.624 3,245
Over 365 days #BiE365H 7,974 6,298
62,697 24,771

Details impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

and deposits are set out in Note 5(b).

B 5 R H fh FE UK TR I8 K 3% & 8 (B 5T 4 5
1B & B 5E5 () ©
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23. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

23. fBATRZ#1E
AZS-—F=A=+-R 5282

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2022 are as

TEMBAR IAHBFRQE) FEW

follows: e <
Particulars of
Place and date of issued and fully
Incorporation/ paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital/ interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BEIRAR
SR/ R R Fif LERs/
WERR%AHE EEBLRAH TRIAER HREx2H#E FRAAREZRE RRRERRFEZILA TEEH
Direct Indirect
[
2022 2021 2022 2021
CECCE| ZBC-F| ZEC2E| ZB2-F
% % % %

Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao The PRC/  Registered capital RMB71,500,000 - - 99.0 99.0 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 9 July 2008 distribution business in the
("Fuzhou Huihao”) #* PRC

RELRNDERELARAT FE/ ZhEx  ARH71,500,000% RAEETERYER
(M B~ “EE)\FtAAH EzES

Putian Huihao Medicine Company Limited The PRC/  Registered capital RMB10,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
("Putian Huihao") ** 11 July 2008 distribution business in the

PRC

RREHEFEEERAF g,/ HEE  ARH10,000,0007 RAEEFERHER
(EmEF) " “EE)\FtA+-A NHEEH

Lianan Kidney Medical Management Company The PRC/  Registered capital RMB20,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Limited ** 15 June 2012 consultancy service business

in the PRC

BEBMBREEARAT" HE/ EhER AR #20,000,0007 KRBT ORENAR

ZZ-"£5ATEA RAARHES

Putian Lianan Kidney Medical Management The PRC/  Registered capital RMB5,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Company Limited*" 8 November 2016 consultancy service business

in the PRC

ERBZBNERERARAT e/ &R 15,000,000 RAEE TR AR

“E-E+-ANH KRB LS

Wuhua Yongke Kidney Hemodialysis Company The PRC/  Registered capital RMB3,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Limited*" 28 November 2016 consultancy service business

in the PRC

RERFB IO RENBRAR" HE/ EhER AR 3,000,007 KRBT ORENER

“EE RAARHES
+-BZ+N\H

Wuchuan Zhining Hemodialysis Company The PRC/  Registered capital RMB3,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Limited”" 25 March 2019 consultancy service business

in the PRC

R/IBENRERERAFT" e,/ &S 3,000,007 RAEE TR AR

—E-0F REARBEH
=RZ+3H

Yangchun City Yanghe Kidney Hemodialysis The PRC/  Registered capital RMB6,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Company limited®" consultancy service business

in the PRC

BEnRENE 0 RERERA=" HE/ BaUEE AR 6,000,007 mmﬁﬁgggﬁggg

oag ES

i The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are transliteration of their respective Chinese names which
have not been registered.

* These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises

established in the PRC

PRC.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDING
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RERREEHIER

2022 2021

—E-— B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and cash equivalents HEkFEEEEER 5,768 25,099

At as 31 March 2022, the cash at banks and cash on hand of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$5,375,000 (2021: approximately HK$24,874,000).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
prevailing market rate. The cash and cash equivalents are
deposits with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorisation to

conduct foreign exchange business.

RZEZ_—_H#=RB=+—H 'F&&H
UMARBIEZRITRERFERSE
##%5,375,0008 T (ZEZ—F ' ©
24,874,000/ 7T)  RITIRERIRITHIZ
FEFHFEZHERFE - RERRSE
SHEBEENEFEREHTEEENCRAR
BRIFZIRIT

ARBAAERZBMABEMER - HEA
RERBBINENDAETHENIIEE
HIEGI RAEE - EERTEEERE
FEREESBEREETIEXZSEDN
RITRHARBRIGSEMER-

BEREEZERERAR
= 2021/22 §$E 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 05 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2022 §iZ—ZE_— _F=H=+—HItFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BS R EMEMRIA
2022 2021
—E-— B
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#Ex TFET

Trade payables B EARE 32,460 8,428

Accruals and other payables (note a) FEst & B R H S I8 (ffska) 4,854 12,014

Contract liabilities (note b) &#H8aE (MsEb) 416 390

37,730 20,832
note: PiIEE -

(@) Included in accruals and other payables mainly represented (@) EHERAREMECHREZTZGER
other tax payables of approximately HK$180,000 (2021: fth FE {1 R T8 49 180,000 7T (ZE = —
HK$362,000) and no amount due to a connected person who £ 1362,000%7T0) RFEM—RBAEAL
is the brother of Yung Ka Lai (2021: HK$6,200,000) which is (BEERZRE) Z2MEZET (Z
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. T —4 16,200,00087T) » BEIK

R ERERERMEE
(b)  Contract liabilities (b) HE#HEE
2022 2021
T HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFERT FHET

Contract liabilities relating to receipt in EATE N 8 & FI AL fm S AR TS A R Y
advance of sales of finished goods or EHNEE
services 416 390

298 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
- continued

note: — continued

(b)

Contract liabilities — continued

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount of sales
of finished goods in advance for a specified range of time
from customers when they sign the contract. This lump
sum amount received is recognised as a contract liability
initially and to be recognised as revenue when performances
obligation are satisfied. The contract liabilities would be
recognised as revenue within one year.

The Group considers the advance payments schemes does
not contain significant financing component and accordingly
the amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects
of the time value of money taking into consideration that the

25. B REMBEMARE-&

MizE : — 48

(b)

BNEaE—&

TEMRIANGHNEREEN KM
RIFTRESIWT ¢

BE AEEERRRITANREER
EFEEENEE —RMERER—FH
E R ZTRIE - WHH Z ERRIA R
WEDRENERTETEREBNEE
Bl sl - SN B AR —F Rk
0y W o

FEERSAEARBAVLEABES
RREE EB 5D > M B L AR 5t Kz {9 AR AR R AL
FEERMEERREHERMEMET L
BEHRTRAEENEEENTCEM

2E g
payment terms were not structured primarily for the provision o=
of finance to the Group.
PN 1&h
Movement in contract liabilities: SHERZED
2022 2021
> S - 2 T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FHETT
At 1 April HEE—H 390 220
Revenue recognised that was included SAENENEGEERZ
in the contract liabilities balance at B
beginning of the year (300) (220)
Consideration received BUWKE 326 390
At 31 March W=B=+—H 416 390

BEREEZERERAR
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25.

230

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

- continued
The ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group

25.

B REMEMRE-

=
o=

FEEZERAHMETNEZBAOR

presented based on the invoice date is as follows: THAVEREC DTN ¢
2022 2021
—E-— B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 90 days Cl=RYE 18,007 3,218
91 to 180 days 91&180H 5,554 556
181 to 365 days 181&F365H 3,658 499
Over 365 days #B8iB365H 5,241 4,155
32,460 8,428

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in
range from 30 to 90 days (2021: 30 to 90 days).

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES
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26. fHE&E

2022 2021
—g-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT THET
Lease liabilities payable: FEHHEaE:
Within one year —FRA 2,732 2,528
Within a period of more than one year —FE L EREANIAME
but not exceeding two years 1,769 2,360
Within a period of more than two years ME LB A7 EANARMN
but not later than five years 8,735 4,710
Within a period of more than five years AFE EHAR 7,750 12,526
20,986 22,124
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RTZEAREEEEZ
12 months shown under current liabilities ~ £%8 (MRS E&FEIE T HIT) (2,732) (2,528)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months IR+ _{EB &R EIHFEZ S8
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBBEETIIMR) 18,254 19,596

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities range from 4.63% to 7.50% (2021: 4.63%

to 7.50%).

4.63%%E7.50%) °

HESRERNMETIIEEERAE

NERL.63%FE7.50% (ZE=—F .

BEREEZERERAR
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27. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR/AMOUNT 27. E{d—%EEMIE EG—%

DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

Amount due to a director and amount due to a shareholder

are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

R R IR

BN —REEREREMN—RRRRIE
AEER - RERAREREE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. fgZs
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
BBz
i B REE
HK$'000
TFHET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, A _ET_EFMA—H-Z¥
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 —_—HF=B=+—H-=ZZ&
ordinary share of HK$0.05 per share ——FmNA—HBRIZEZZ
F=A=+—HEE
EE0.058B T2 ZiER 10,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, RIEZZHENE—B-ZF
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 —_—F=B=+—H-=Z%&
—FEMA—HKRZIZEZZ
F=HA=+—H 560,222,136 28,011

232 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RESERVES 29. (#1E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

of the consolidated financial statements.

FERBE_S_FR-F—F=
A=+—HLEEEZRERHEHTHE
EINGEHBRRZGEAEDED
*o

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. ZAFMBIRRRR
THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-C T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBABZRE 6,484 6,484
Right-of-use assets EREEE 931 1,947
Property, plant and equipment Y2~ BB e 5% 484 875
7,899 9,306
Current assets RENE E
Other receivables and deposits HhEWERIE g & 593 572
Cash and cash equivalents REKRREEMBEIER 379 103
972 675
Current liabilities RENEE
Accruals and other payables FESTHE A R E M ERIE 1,859 8,913
Lease liabilities HE&E 927 1,067
Amount due to subsidiaries FEHEATRIE 25,662 =
Amount due to a director BT —%EERIE 3,500 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder FE{— & IRERFRIA - 1,200
31,948 18,230

BEREEZERERAR
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

234

THE COMPANY - continued

30. ZABMBRRER—E

2022 2021

—E-C B —fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Net current liabilities mENBE(RIFEE (30,976) (17,555)

Total assets less current liabilities BEMERRHEE (23,077) (8,249)
Non-current liabilities JEREBIEE

Lease liabilities HEAaE - 927

Net liabilities BEFEE (23,077) (9,176)
Capital and reserves B R #E

Share capital f% 7 28,011 28,011

Reserves (Note 31) fEfE (MIsE31) (51,088) (37,187)

Total equity R AREE (23,077) (9,176)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2022 and signed

on its behalf by:

Wang Jia Jun Wong Hon Kit
Executive Director Independent non-executive
Director

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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31. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 31. ZAFHE
Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R {7 {8 ERERE 4 EaHy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET AT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-Z&ENA—H 60,299 3,944 (99,069) (34,826)
Loss for the year FEEBE - - (4,088) (4,088)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZAEEZHEEEBEE - - (4,088) (4,088)
Share-based payment (Note 33) URMAERZ AR
(Ffiz£33) - 1,727 - 1,727
At 31 March 2021 and RZB_—F=A=+—H
1 April 2021 RZE_—FmBF—H 60,299 5,671 (103,157) (37,187)
Loss for the year FEEBR - - (13,987) (13,987)
Total comprehensive loss FFEEZEBBLEE
for the year - - (13,987) (13,987)
Share-based payment (Note 33) MBmAERZAR
(MiE33) - 86 - 86
Transfer of reserve upon the forfeited ¥ BEARHE R U B S84 (i 4
of share options - (121) 121 -
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZZH=R=1+—H 60,299 5,636 (117,023) (51,088)

BEREEZERERAR
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32.

236

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, this

contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there was
no forfeiture of retirement benefits schemes contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) in the Group. As
at 31 March 2022 and 2021, no forfeited contribution under
the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is available to

reduce the contribution payable in future years.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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FEFERPERIZNB AT ZEES
EMBFEEZEREERAKEH S
B -ZEMBREARFMNRASZZE
FEDLEPR KRB 5B HRUB TR
@ - AEBBMB KB G E 2 ME—
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 56,022,213 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however,
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

33. BERg TR

RIFB—ZFAAR-+HMBA > EARFHK
MRS 8 (TREARESTE)) - &
t-EFETREE-EEAEBRBER
BEUKRBRESEMAEEGRR
HEHNBEHAEBRFHEMBOZ
ﬁﬁf’m)\:t(r/,\}\ij)?*tﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂ%’
MUEBBRMAORM MR EHS TR
BRkOHRENSERFHBNERM R
BREREAIUTETHRESROVBES
56,022,213 KM HERETATEH
TRZANZ210% ° R IR B8 AR R 51 B AR RR AT
RENBEREHEFISEEEBTR L
TREABTEHITREEI10% FRIFAE
ARRRIEBRRAESTHE TAA
REBRERTF2EALNRMBEERN
ER12EBHERRTER1% (AEAQ
BAEEKRR (EER LHRA) H\ILIF
HITEFHARSZTEZHMEBEAL (EE
REMRA) RHERID) > RIRBEER
BARTAABEERRIIGILIFANIT
EFURFZENEABBEALHRS
MELRBBEIRAFRKEHITRMO
0.1% BIERERMKRENITEAMARTE
MREME MRHNBREARES
ERENBBEATE EHEERER
REREBRBBEI10EBITHE -BRETE
BAAGQRMNERLBHREMIFEHE
WERLFFIBWSE ;(b)RMDNER
REBMAAEXZEBEBXAESHER
BREFRIIBNTHERHE ; RORMBE
HEZBSE S8RRAARERBER
BZRZ1.008T 2B - Bk
BRERMEREN EEZBAES0
FHRAMABR
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33.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

As at 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of
which share options had been granted but not exercised
under the Share Option Scheme was 30,473,892 (2021:
31,773,892) shares, representing approximately 5.44%
(2021: 5.67%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. Under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and the
provision of the Share Option Scheme, each grant of Options
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be

approved by the independent non-executive directors.

The following table discloses details and the movements
of the Company's share options held by directors and
employees during the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021:

33. FARRESTEI— 1R

RZEZZF=R=+—H RESR
RESBBEMKRTEZERES K
ZRIDEE %A30,473,82R (T ——
£ :31,773,8928) s AR E R ZH
ZBEBTRDLN5.44% (ZE-—F .
5.67%) iR EHARAE17.04(1)1F K
BRESEZE O SRIBHBRES
ARBDEZ - BRETHAERTERR
FHESEZEAHBABESEILE
BITESHE

BE_ZT__Fk_T”-_—%=H8
—t+—HEFE ZEEREEFELA
BEREZFRREEN TRINE !

Exercise Balance Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022
RIEZ-F R-B_ZF
—RiRHZ mA-AZ =B=+-Hz
B AH AR TR HAEESER  RERER  RERTE  HARESR
HKS
BT
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668 1,414,670 = = 1,414,670
Bz 26 October 2028
“2-\E+AZ+7RH 2 \E+AZ+RHE
ZBN\E+AZ+RHE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020- 0.190 5,300,000 - = 5,300,000
24 April 2030
2 ZFMAC+MA “EEEMACTMAR
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
Total
st 6,714,670 = - 6,714,670
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33. FARRESTE iR

Exercise Balance Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2021 the year the year 31 March 2022
RZIEZ-%& RZBZZ
—RiRHZ mA-RAZ =B=+-Hz
th= L =gt iR HAEESR  RERER  RERTE  HARESR
HKS
BT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668 11,689,222 = = 11,689,222
B8 26 October 2028
“T-N\E+RAZt73H “E-\EtRZ-tiHE
ZBN\E+AZ+RHE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020- 0.190 10,640,000 (1,300,000) = 9,340,000
24 April 2030
C$IREMACHMA CECSEMACTMAE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2021- 0.190 1,170,000 = = 1,170,000
24 April 2030
ZEZEMAZTMEA ZZC-FMAZtMAZE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2022-
24 April 2030 0.190 1,560,000 = = 1,560,000
ZEZEMAZTMEA ZZC2EMACtMAE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
Total
At 25,059,222 (1,300,000) - 23,759,222
Grand total
Rk 31,773,892 (1,300,000) - 30,473,892
BEEEZRARAR 239
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Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2020 the year the year 31 March 2021
RZIEZSE RZEZ-£
—RiRHZ mA—-HZ =B=+-Hz
th= L =gt iR HAEESR  REARH RERTE HARESR
HKS
BT
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 1,414,670 - - 1,414,670
EE 26 October 2028
“T-N\E+RAZt73H “E-\EtRZ-tiHE
ZBN\E+AZ+RHE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020- 0.190 = 5,300,000 = 5,300,000
24 April 2030
C$IREMACHMA CECSEMACTMAE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
Total
H 1,414,670 5,300,000 - 6,714,670
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33. FARRESTE— iR

Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2020 the year the year 31 March 2021
RZIEZSE RZEZ-£
—RiRHZ mA-RAZ =B=+-Hz
th= L =gt iR HAEESR  REARH RERTE HARESR
HKS
BT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668 11,689,222 = = 11,689,222
B8 26 October 2028
“T-N\E+RAZt73H “E-\EtRZ-tiHE
ZBN\E+AZ+RHE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020- 0.190 = 10,640,000 = 10,640,000
24 April 2030
—E2_REMAC+MA —E2_ZEMAHMAE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2021- 0.190 = 1,170,000 = 1,170,000
24 April 2030
ZEZEMAZTMEA ZZC-FMAZtMAZE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2022-
24 April 2030 0.190 = 1,560,000 = 1,560,000
ZEZEMAZTMEA ZZC2EMACtMAE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
Total
At 11,689,222 13,370,000 - 25,059,222
Grand total
Rk 13,103,892 18,670,000 - 31,773,892

BEREEERERAR
2021/22 3R
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33.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share options granted on 26 October 2018
(“Share Option 1")

The fair value of Share Option 1 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$3,944,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.119 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility rate of 62.873%), annual risk free interest
rate of 2.36% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 26 October 2013 to 26 October 2018.

All of the Share Options 1 were immediately vested from the

date of granted.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no share-
based payment expense was charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share
Option 2")

The fair value of Share Option 2 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$1,864,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.190 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility of 58.779%, annual risk free interest rate
of 0.51% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 24 April 2015 to 24 April 2020.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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#3,944,0008 T ZIEXNEEHAE
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share
Option 2"”) - continued
Among the 3,900,000 options granted to the employees of
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these options are

exercisable in the following manner:

1. up to 30% of the options granted to each grantee
shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23
April 2021;

2. up to further 30% of the options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021
to 23 April 2022; and

3. all the remaining 40% of the options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022
to 23 April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24
April 2030.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, share-based payment
expense of approximately HK$86,000 (2021: HK$1,727,000)

was charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

33. FARRESTEI -1

R-E_EFMNAZ+HNAKRHDN
RERGHE (THERRHE2)) — &
RAaEARFENRBATRZEEREZ
3,900,00017 BE RGP > s S HE AR #E AT %2
MFARITE:

1. MBEABAREZEL30%ER
EER_Z-_ZTFEMNA-Z+MAH
BB E_ZE_—F@B_-_+=
HHARIATAE

2. MBERBAE—TELZEZSH
M30%BREKNK _S_—FM0
BZ+HHEHZZBEZZS =
MAZ+=HHMITE; &

3. MBEABARLEZABHRT4I0%
BREBVR _-_SE_-__MA
—tHHEHRZBE_T =N
BZ+=HHBETE KREBER
TARER-_T=EFEMNA-+MHE
Eo

BE_T__F=B=+—HLEE"
#986,000# T (ZEZ-—4% 11,727,000
BT URMNARRZARBALZESA
EEEERA-C
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34.

244

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 34. E XA XS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entered into transactions with
related parties/connected person which, in the opinion of
directors, were carried out at normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of the Group's business, as shown

below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration:

PR EMBRERAMEHREESN
AEMT RS MEALETTY
R EFZRRD AEXZNHEEESR
EFRIUENAEBRREEFBRERE
7 5mETF

a) FTEEHASHM :

2022 2021

- S —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$’000

FAT TET

Short term employees benefits ZHAEEEF 826 831
Provident fund contributions NETHER 18 18
Share-based payment UBMAERZ TR - 28
844 877

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 34. EXE A RS — &

- continued
(b) Transaction with related parties/connected b) ElREA FEALZRS
person
2022 2021
—E_C s
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAT TETT
Expense relating to short-term lease  £2Wang Jia JunzJ i 52 EAFA &
with Wang Jia Jun BRZEAX 180 180

Finance cost of lease liabilities to the HHZEEZHHK

mother of Yung Ka Lai and the Wang Jia JunzZ & B ER 2
mother-in-law of Wang Jia Jun HEaREZHMBEER

The Group had entered into a number of transactions
with connected parties which, upon the listing of
shares on the Stock Exchange, became connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. These
transactions are continuing transactions exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The detailed information has
been disclosed on Report of the Directors “Continuing

Connected Transactions”.

FEBARESTULSERS I
RSEMRPAETR  REFELHR
A ZEMBAMATABZME
AL -ZEXGBRHERS B
RETEDRAUETRERIR
RHEZHE -FHENERES
EREFEMAERZINRE

BEREEERERAR
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. MEEHELENAEBHIR

FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Amounts due

Amount due to directors
to a connected and a Lease
person shareholder liabilities Total
fEf—%
MEAL REHAEZR
ZRE  —ARRMIE HE&RE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT FTET TET
At 1 April 2020 KZE-Z£MA—H 5,200 1,200 23,531 29,931
Change from financing cash flows: HERERELT .
Proceed of amount due to directors and BEEGEER—ARRTE
a shareholder - 7,050 - 7,050
Proceed of amount due to a connected person ~ BEEN—2EEALZHE 1,000 - - 1,000
Repayment of lease liabilities BERESE - - (3,723) (3,723)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERETEEHEE 1,000 7,050 (3,723) 4,327
Other changes: HithEE) :
New lease entered METHE - - 296 29
Lease termination HERIE - - (969) (969)
Interest expenses FIEHE% - = 1,338 1,338
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 1,651 1,651
Total other changes Hih& )i - - 2,316 2,316
At 31 March 2021 and KZEZ—-£=F=+—-Bk
1 April 2021 —E--FHmBA—H 6,200 8,250 22,124 36,574
Change from financing cash flows: MERSRELH
Repayment of amount due to directors and BEENEER—2RENE
a shareholder - (4,750) - (4,750)
Repayment of amount due to BERG—RMEALZHE
a connected person (6,200) - - (6,200)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREEE - - (4,019) (4,019)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSTEEHAE (6,200) (4,750) (4,019) (14,969)
Other changes: Hithga
New lease entered MEiTHE - - 693 693
Interest expenses FISEX - - 1,308 1,308
Exchange realignment EREE - - 880 880
Total other changes Hitg 54858 - = 2,881 2,881
At 31 March 2022 KZE-ZZ£=ZRA=+—H - 3,500 20,986 24,486

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36
Capital commitments at each of the end of the reporting
date contracted but not provided for in the consolidated

financial statements were as follows:

A o3 W 5 i 2R PR

31 March 2022 E—TFE__—F=H=+—HI-FE

. BRI
REREWF BTNELRERGEH
BRERFHEHZERRBOT

2022 2021
“EIZF | T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Commitments for the construction contract FAEY)¥EEE S BESLNKIE
for leasehold improvement - 1,245

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37
The Directors are not aware of any significant events
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31

March 2022 and up to the date of this report.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 38.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June
2022.

. HREHEEE
EFLAMEBER S ZFE=RA=+—
ARBEEAREHHEBEZBETREZ
EAIEKREIE

RETIZESMBRR

REMBRERENR_ZZE__FA
“t+tHHEFEHERRETE-
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Five Years Financial Summary
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

BB ETIREERMBRR]ZETEENE
ZAEMBEEZXEREELRBRZBE

published audited financial statements, is set out below: EHIUE
=
RESULTS E 3
For the year ended 31 March
H#E=-R=1+—HL
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —E_—F TR —E-hE —T—N\F
HKS’000 HKS/000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TERT TAR TET TAR TET
Results ES
Revenue Iy 25 154,823 114,086 96,977 96,480 353,014
Cost of sales HE R (100,589) (72,750) (71,625) (80,448) (313,825)
Gross profit EY 54,234 41,336 25,352 16,032 39,189
Other revenue Hittes 50 597 158 607 600
Other gain and loss, net Hithles R g518 2 7288 - (102) 219 (646) 196
(Provision)/reversal of impairment loss B REMBWTIEREZEZ
in respect of trade and other WIEEE () /BEFE
receivables and deposits, net (3,187) (2,409) (3,617) 4,788 -
Impairment loss on goodwill mERERE . (46,630) - - (35,459) (336)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBBATZEE - - - _ _
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (29,600) (24,987) (17,139) (3,669) (13,094)
Administrative expenses THEZ (22,250) (16,524) (14,443) (25,041) (25,952)
Loss from operations EEERGE (47,383) (2,089) (9,470) (43,388) 603
Finance costs HHER (1,308) (1,338) (11,089) (12,839) (14,696)
Loss before taxation IR ARSI (48,691) (3,427) (20,559) (56,227) (14,093)
Taxation 1A (2,246) (1,050) (308) (1,946) (4,856)
Loss from discontinued operation BRIEEEERER - - - (7,570) (36,478)
Loss for the year TEEBE (50,937) (4,477) (20,867) (65,743) (55,427)
(Loss)/profit for the year HMTALEIERERE
attributable to: (#538) /Al .
Owners of the Company KRB EFA (50,999) (4,536) (20,744) (66,592) (55,586)
Non-controlling interests 2 48 59 (123) 849 159
(50,937) (4,477) (20,867) (65,743) (55,427)
For the_year ended 31 March
H#E=B=1+—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
b oot ZEZ-—& CEIZE E—NE T\
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERT BT BT BT AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Total assets mEE 191,818 223,587 206,700 226,589 456,808
Total liabilities rv@\%ﬁ (63,722) (52,512) (48,365) (91,494) (242,392)
Total equity REmAE 128,096 171,075 158,335 135,095 214,416
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